to our

Shareowners

A Promise Made. . .
“Our company’s renewed financial discipline, improved business prospects and the favorable impact of the Rentrak Japan
joint venture restructuring allow us to project fiscal 2002 earnings per diluted share to be in the $0.80 to $0.85 range,
which would be a record earnings year for Rentrak.” From 2001 Annual Report to Shareowners
Results Delivered. . .
Rentrak reported record results for its fiscal year ended March 31, 2002. Consolidated net earnings were $9.0 million, or
$0.85 per share on 10.6 million fully diluted shares, which was at the high end our projected earnings per share guidance
that we provided at the beginning of the fiscal year. These results compared favorably with last year’s reported results of
a consolidated net loss of $7.6 million, or ($0.63) per diluted share, on 12.0 million shares in fiscal 2001. Rentrak’s previous
record earnings were $6.3 million, or $0.52 per diluted share on 12.2 million shares outstanding in fiscal 1997.

Total revenues for fiscal year 2002 were $102.6 million,
compared with $117.9 million in fiscal 2001. We expected
total revenues for fiscal 2002 to be lower than last year as
we focused our business model more toward information
management, which carries higher margins than physical
distribution of packaged goods. We have substantially
completed the company’s transformation from one that
has primarily distributed videocassettes to a company
that increasingly provides sophisticated information
management services for a broad range of clients in the
entertainment industry.
We ended the year with 11.6 percent fewer diluted shares
outstanding, including approximately 1.5 million shares
that Rentrak’s former Chairman and CEO surrendered in
consideration for canceling a loan used to exercise stock
options. With a zero balance on our credit line and a cash
position of $12 million at year-end, compared with $3.3
million last year, we believe that we have more than enough
cash to internally fund any new opportunities or acquisitions
that we currently have under consideration. We are poised to
continue improving our information management technology
and remain committed to profitably leveraging our systems
expertise into other arenas both within and beyond the
entertainment industry.
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Core Information Management Business Remains Key

The company’s entertainment business segment earned
$1.09 per diluted share in fiscal year 2002, compared with a
loss of $0.45 per diluted share in fiscal 2001. Entertainment
revenues totaled $87.3 million compared with $97.7 million
in fiscal 2001. The decline in year-over-year entertainment
revenues can be attributed to lower rental turns for the
products that Rentrak distributed and lower retail sales at
Blowout Video, the company’s chain of retail stores that sell
new and used home entertainment products. Rentrak closed
four of Blowout’s total seven stores during the year and has
announced its intention to close the remaining stores as
economic conditions permit.
Rentrak expects its revenue-sharing business to
grow during the coming year in the following sectors

Videocassettes Total shipments of videocassettes to video rental
stores increased 8.6 percent from 2.4 million to 2.6 million
in fiscal 2002. As Rentrak’s video rental store clients continue
to try to balance their product offerings between videocassette
and the emerging DVD formats, we expect our clients to
steadily increase the percentage of videocassettes they order
on a revenue-sharing basis since revenue sharing reduces
retailer risk, effectively broadens and deepens video rental
store inventory, and increases customer satisfaction. We
expect to realize double digit percentage increases in
videocassette shipments during the coming year.

DVDs Rentrak’s DVD shipments to video retail stores
increased nearly 1500 percent this past year, from 10,629
in fiscal year 2001 to 163,669 in fiscal year 2002. The
majority of DVDs that Rentrak shipped on a revenuesharing basis were the result of Rentrak’s revenue-sharing
agreement reached this past year with MGM Home
Entertainment. If Rentrak signs agreements with additional
studios for revenue sharing on DVDs, which we expect,
we should realize further significant increases in
DVD shipments.
Videogames To date, videogames have not been a revenuesharing product. Therefore, video retailers that carry
videogames have bought the games and assumed all the
risk that they could produce a return on their investment
by generating rental fees just as they did with videocassettes
before Rentrak pioneered revenue-sharing on those products.
Because of the high cost of each copy of a game, video
retailers generally have under ordered and have been unable
to satisfy demand on popular videogames. We believe the
distribution of videogames on a revenue-sharing basis to
independent video retailers is a great opportunity, and we
intend to pursue that business aggressively.
Entertainment Essentials Software to Provide
Growth Vehicle

We made substantial progress on several important strategic
software initiatives to successfully position Rentrak for new
opportunities in the evolving entertainment industry. The
result is a unique, sophisticated suite of software
tools, recently renamed “Entertainment
Essentials” from “DigiTrak,” with multiple
applications in the entertainment industry:

Theatrical The new software suite enables real-time, accurate
capture, analysis and reporting of box office activity allowing
Rentrak to begin offering enhanced information management
services to studios and other organizations that rely on that
data. During fiscal 2002 Rentrak invested approximately
$1.1 million, that we concurrently expensed, in software,
processes and personnel primarily in the theatrical arena,
and we expect to start earning a return on that investment
this year.
Digital We have begun working with certain digital content
owners and service providers to assess their emerging needs
to track transactional data across a wide variety of electronic
distribution media. Now that broadband has reached more
than 10 million homes, the critical mass necessary for profitable downloading of digital content may be nearly at hand.
Digital media distribution hinges, in part, on content owners’
ability to capture, track, measure and validate every use of
their content and to collect resulting royalties and fees.
Rentrak is positioning itself to fill that vital need.
Packaged Goods With the new software, we expect to be able
to quickly extend our tracking and reporting of packaged
goods transactions beyond rentals of videocassettes, DVDs
and videogames to the sale of these and other products by
traditional retailers, mass merchants and Web-based retailers.
These new tracking services should offer opportunities to
expand Rentrak’s revenues from a much wider range of
prospective clients.

Home Entertainment Entertainment Essentials
includes an upgrade and expansion of our
home entertainment reporting and analysis
services for studios — the services that have
been Rentrak’s unique hallmark to date.
Rentrak expects to expand information
management services not only for rentals
of VHS cassettes, but also for DVDs and
videogames, both of which have shown
recent explosive growth.

Shown above is the first screen of Rentrak’s new software product, “Entertainment Essentials.”
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3PF to Break Even This Year

Acknowledgements

The company’s fulfillment operation, 3PF, reported a loss
of $2.5 million, or ($0.24) per diluted share in fiscal 2002,
compared with a loss of $2.2 million, or ($0.18) per diluted
share last year. Total revenues at 3PF for the year were
$17.5 million, compared with $23.4 million in fiscal 2001.
Excluding revenues from CyberRebate in both years, total
fulfillment revenues in fiscal 2002 increased 9 percent as a
result of new clients and business expansions from existing
3PF clients. CyberRebate.com, Inc. is a former 3PF client
that ceased operation and filed for bankruptcy in the first
quarter of fiscal 2002.

I want to thank the members of the Rentrak board of
directors for their continued wise counsel during this first
full year since the change of control that occurred on
September 18, 2000. Each board member has done an
exceptional job for the company and its shareowners.

We made steady progress toward bringing our fulfillment
subsidiary, 3PF, Inc., closer to sustainable profitability. We
remain highly confident of our ability to size our warehouse
capacity to our customer base in the near future as we are
finalizing an agreement with a major client to move into our
Groveport (Columbus, Ohio) facility. 3PF has added new
clients and expects to bring additional new clients online
this summer. Better space utilization, tighter financial
controls and continuing productivity gains will substantially
improve 3PF’s financial performance.
Business Outlook

The company currently expects fiscal 2003 consolidated
revenues of between $105 million and $110 million,
representing growth of between 3 and 8 percent over the
$102 million generated in fiscal 2002. Fiscal 2003 earnings
per diluted share are expected to be approximately $0.40
for the entertainment segment, compared with the $0.27
per share earned in fiscal 2002, excluding the one-time
benefit of the sale of Rentrak Japan. These revenue and
EPS expectations conservatively assume minimal contributions
from the new market opportunities we are pursuing. We
expect 3PF to break even in fiscal 2003, with second-half
profits offsetting first-half losses, compared with a loss
of $2.5 million in fiscal 2002.
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I want to especially mention the contributions of Stanford
Stoddard, the newest member of the Rentrak board.
Mr. Stoddard was elected as a director by the board of
directors on May 23, 2001, and re-elected at the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders on August 16, 2001. As Rentrak
shareowners, we all benefit from his extensive business and
financial experience.
I continue to be impressed with Rentrak’s talented work
force. We appreciate the critical role each member of the
Rentrak team plays in the company’s overall success. Each
day Rentrak’s work force fulfills a commitment to deliver
the best customer satisfaction, which we believe will
translate into higher value for shareowners.
Many events occurred in the financial market place during
fiscal 2002 that shook the confidence of some company’s
investors. Rentrak’s shareowners can be confident that their
company’s business is being reported honestly and forthrightly
in terms of all accounting procedures and requirements.
Our priorities and our business approach remain constant
and I want to personally assure all investors that we are
continuing to work on your behalf to bring the highest
possible return for each of them.

June 28, 2002

Paul A. Rosenbaum
Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board

2002 Financial Highlights
●

Reported record-breaking year in earnings and earnings-per-share.

●

Reduced common share and common share equivalents outstanding by 11.4 percent.

●

Increased cash and cash equivalents by 262 percent, compared with last year.

●

Restructured Japanese joint venture that provided the company with an $8.7 million
after-tax earnings impact.

●

Increased closing share price at fiscal year end by 90 percent from $3.18 in fiscal year
2001 to $7.00 in fiscal year 2002.

Financial Summary
(Numbers in thousands, except per-share amounts)

Total net revenues
Net earnings
Diluted earnings per share
Common share and common
share equivalents outstanding

2002

2001

2000

$102,614

$116,399

$113,384

$8,994

$(7,577)

$3,425

$0.85

$(0.63)

$0.32

10,613

11,985

10,759

Total Revenues

Net Earnings

Earnings Per Share

2002 2001 2000

2002 2001 2000

2002 2001 2000
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PART I
ITEM 1.

BUSINESS

GENERAL
The Company's primary business is the collection, processing, analysis and presentation of rental
and sales information regarding videocassettes and digital videodiscs (“DVD’s”) leased to home
video specialty stores and other retailers by way of its Pay Per Transaction system (the “PPT
System”). Under the Company’s PPT System, home video specialty stores and other retailers that
rent videocassettes and DVD’s (“Units”) to consumers (“Retailers”), including grocery stores and
convenience stores, lease Units, and other media from Rentrak for a low up-front fee and share a
portion of each retail rental transaction with the Company. The Company’s PPT System
generated 71 percent, 71 percent and 83 percent of total revenues in fiscal years 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.
The Company engages in additional lines of business through the following subsidiaries:
3PF.COM, Inc. (formerly ComAlliance), provides order processing, inventory management, and
fulfillment services to Internet retailers and wholesalers and to other businesses requiring just-intime fulfillment. 3PF.COM, Inc.'s Web-site can be accessed at www.3PF.COM.
BlowOut Video, Inc., sells videocassettes and DVD’s (“Units”) through its Website
www.blowoutvideo.com, and through three retail outlets.
PAY-PER-TRANSACTION SYSTEM
The Company distributes Units principally to home video specialty stores through its PPT System.
The PPT System enables Retailers to obtain Units at a significantly lower initial cost than if they
purchased the Units from traditional video distributors.
Under the PPT System, after the Retailer is approved for participation in the PPT System, Units
are leased to the Retailer for a low initial fee (the "Order Processing Fee") plus a percentage of
revenues generated by the Retailer from rentals to consumers (the "Transaction Fee"). The
Company retains a portion of each Order Processing Fee and Transaction Fee and remits the
remainder to the appropriate motion picture studios or other licensee or owner of the rights to
certain video programming ("Program Suppliers") that hold the distribution rights to the Units. Due
to the lower cost of "bringing Units in the door", Retailers generally obtain a greater number of
Units under the PPT System than the traditional distribution method. The intended benefit to the
Retailer is a higher volume of rental transactions, as well as a reduction in capital cost and risk.
The intended benefit to the Program Supplier is an increase in the total number of Units shipped,
resulting in increased revenues and opportunity for profit. The intended benefit to the consumer is
the potential of finding more copies of certain newly released hit titles and a greater selection of
other titles at Retailers participating in the PPT System ("Participating Retailers").
The Company markets its PPT System throughout the United States and Canada. Following the
sale of a 5.6 percent interest in Rentrak Japan Co., Ltd. ("Rentrak Japan"), a Japanese
corporation which markets a similar service to video retailers in Japan, in October 2001, the
Company no longer received revenues from the Asian markets.
In February 1998, the Company entered into a Shareholders Agreement and a PPT License

Agreement with Columbus Holdings Limited and Rentrak UK Limited to develop the Company’s
PPT distribution and information processing business in the United Kingdom through Rentrak UK.
The Company presently owns a 92 percent equity interest in Rentrak UK. As of March 31, 2000,
Rentrak UK was not generating income or positive cash flow and the Company’s investment of
$222,000 was written off. During the year ended March 31, 2001, Rentrak UK continued to
generate no income or cash flow. During the year ended March 31, 2002, Rentrak UK improved
its performance producing minimal income and cash flow. Management of the Company has
made changes to decrease the cost of operations, including space and staffing costs, and it is
continuing to closely evaluate the financial performance of operations. Management is
considering various alternatives including selling or closing down Rentrak UK's operations.
The Company currently offers substantially all of the titles of a number of Program Suppliers,
including Buena Vista Pictures Distribution, Inc., a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company,
Paramount Home Video, Inc., Universal Studios Home Video, Inc., Twentieth Century Fox Home
Entertainment (formerly Fox Video), a subsidiary of Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation and
MGM Home Entertainment, a subsidiary of the Metro Goldman Meyer Company. The Company's
arrangements with Program Suppliers are of varying duration, scope and formality. In some
cases, the Company has obtained Units pursuant to contracts or arrangements with Program
Suppliers on a title-by-title basis and in other cases the contracts or arrangements provide that all
titles released for distribution by such Program Supplier will be provided to the Company for the
PPT System. Many of the Company's agreements with Program Suppliers, including all major
Program Suppliers, may be terminated upon relatively short notice. Therefore, there is no
assurance that any of the Program Suppliers will continue to distribute Units through the PPT
System, continue to have available for distribution titles which the Company can distribute on a
profitable basis, or continue to remain in business. Even if titles are otherwise available from
Program Suppliers to the Company, there is no assurance that they will be made available on
terms acceptable to the Company. During the last three years, the Company has not experienced
any material difficulty acquiring suitable Units for the Company’s markets on acceptable terms and
conditions from Program Suppliers that have agreed to provide the same to the Company. The
Company has one Program Supplier that supplied product that generated 17 percent, a second
that generated 15 percent, and a third that generated 13 percent of Rentrak revenues for the year
ended March 31, 2002. There were no other Program Suppliers who provided product that
generated more than 10 percent of revenues for the year ended March 31, 2002.
The Company currently receives a significant amount of product from three Program Suppliers.
Although management does not believe that these relationships will be terminated in the near
term, a loss of any of these suppliers could have an adverse effect on the Company’s operating
results.
Certain Program Suppliers have requested, and the Company has provided, financial or
performance commitments from the Company, including advances, warrants, or guarantees, as a
condition of obtaining certain titles. The Company determines whether to provide such
commitments on a case-by-case basis, depending upon the Program Supplier's success with such
titles prior to home video distribution and the Company's assessment of expected success in
home rental distribution. The Company intends to continue this practice of providing such
commitments and there is no assurance that this practice will not in the future result in losses
which may be material.

Distribution of Cassettes and DVD’s (“Units”)
The Company's proprietary Rentrak Profit Maker Software (the "RPM Software") allows
Participating Retailers to order Units through their Point of Sale (“POS”) system software and
provides the Participating Retailers with substantial information regarding all offered titles.
Ordering occurs via a networked computer interface. To further assist the Participating Retailers
in ordering, the Company also produces a monthly product catalogue called "Ontrak."
To be competitive, Retailers must be able to rent their Units on the "street date" announced by the
Program Supplier for the title. Rentrak has contracted with its subsidiary 3PF.COM to distribute
Rentrak's Units via overnight air courier to assure delivery to Participating Retailers on the street
date. The freight costs of such distribution comprise a portion of the Company's cost of sales.
Computer Operations
To participate in the Company's PPT System, Retailers must install Rentrak approved computer
software and hardware to process all of their rental and sale transactions. Participating Retailers
are required to use one of the POS software vendors approved by the Company as conforming to
the Company's specifications. The Company's RPM Software resides on the Retailer's POS
computer system and transmits a record of PPT transactions to the Company over a
telecommunications network. The RPM Software also assists the Retailer in ordering newly
released titles and in managing the inventory of Units.
The Company's information system processes these transactions and prepares reports for
Program Suppliers and Participating Retailers. In addition, it determines variations from statistical
norms for potential audit action. The Company's information system also transmits information on
new titles and confirms orders made to the RPM Software at the Retailer location.
Retailer Auditing
From time to time, the Company audits Participating Retailers in order to verify that they are
reporting all rentals and sales of Units on a consistent, accurate and timely basis. Several
different types of exception reports are produced weekly. These reports are designed to identify
any Participating Retailers who vary from the Company's statistical norms. Depending upon the
results of the Company's analysis of the reports, the Company may conduct an in-store audit.
Audits may be performed with or without notice and any refusal to allow such an audit can be
cause for immediate termination from the PPT System. If audit violations are found, the
Participating Retailer is subject to fines, audit fees, immediate removal from the PPT System
and/or repossession of all leased Units.
Seasonality
The Company believes that the home video industry is seasonal because Program Suppliers tend
to introduce hit titles at two periods of the year, early summer and Christmas. Since the release to
home video usually follows the theatrical release by approximately six months (although significant
variations occur on certain titles), the seasonal peaks for home video also generally occur in early
summer and at Christmas. The Company believes its volume of rental transactions reflects, in
part, this seasonal pattern, although the growth of Program Suppliers, titles available to the
Company, and Participating Retailers may tend to obscure any seasonal effect. The Company
believes such seasonal variations may be reflected in future quarterly patterns of its revenues and

earnings.
Retailer Financing Program
In 1992, the Company established a Retailer Loan Program whereby, on a selective basis, it
provided financing to Participating Retailers that the Company believed had the potential for
substantial growth in the industry. The underlying rationale for this program was the belief that the
Company could expand its business and at the same time participate in the rapid growth
experienced by the video retailers in which it invested. During fiscal 2001, the Company
discontinued new financings under this program and provided reserves of $6.6 million
representing the entire outstanding balance of the program loans. The Company continues to
seek enforcement of agreements entered into in connection with this program in accordance with
their terms to the extent practicable.
Competition
The Cassette and DVD distribution business is a highly competitive industry that is rapidly
changing. The traditional method of distributing these Cassettes and DVD’s (“Units”) to
Retailers is through purchase transactions; i.e., a Retailer purchases Units from a distributor
and then offers the Units for rental or sale to the general public. As described in greater detail
above (see "Pay-Per-Transaction System"), the Company's PPT System offers Retailers an
alternative method of obtaining Units. Accordingly, the Company faces intense competition
from all of the traditional distributors, including Ingram Entertainment, Inc., VPD, and Video One
Canada, Ltd. These and other traditional distributors have extensive distribution networks,
long-standing relationships with Program Suppliers and Retailers, and, in some cases,
significantly greater financial resources than the Company.
In the last two years certain traditional distributors have taken steps to offer Units to Retailers on
a revenue sharing basis. For example, several traditional distributors have executed licensing
agreements with Supercomm, Inc. ("Supercomm"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Walt
Disney Company, to market product on revenue sharing terms. Several traditional distributors
have also executed revenue sharing agreements with motion picture studios ("Studios").
The Company also competes with Supercomm on two levels: (1) domestically – for processing
data for certain Studios’ direct relationships with Blockbuster Video and other Retailers; and (2)
internationally in certain markets. Supercomm also processes data for traditional distributors
such as Ingram who then compete with the Company for revenue sharing Units as well as
traditional Units.
The Company also faces direct competition from the Studios. Beginning in 1997, several major
Studios offered Retailers discounted pricing if such Retailers substantially increased the
quantity of Units purchased. Also, some major Studios have offered Units to Retailers on a
lease basis. In addition, all major Studios sell Units directly to major Retailers including
Blockbuster, the world's largest chain of home video specialty stores. The Company believes
all of the major Studios have executed direct revenue sharing agreements with Blockbuster and
Hollywood Entertainment, the world's second largest chain of home video specialty stores. The
Company also believes that certain Studios have executed direct revenue sharing agreements
with several other large Retailers. The Company does not believe that the Studios have
executed direct revenue sharing agreements with other smaller Retailers, but there can be no
assurance that they will not do so in the future.

The Studios also compete with the Company by releasing certain Unit titles on a "sell-through"
basis; i.e., they bypass the traditional rental period by selling the Units directly to consumers at
a price of approximately $9.95 -- $19.95. To date, such "sell-through" distribution has generally
been limited to certain newly released hit titles with wide general family appeal. However,
because the Company's PPT business is partially dependent upon the existence of a rental
period, a shift toward such "sell-through" distribution, particularly with respect to popular titles,
could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business.
The Company also competes with businesses that use alternative distribution methods to
provide video entertainment directly to consumers, such as the following: (1) direct broadcast
satellite transmission systems; (2) traditional cable television systems; (3) pay-per-view cable
television systems; and (4) delivery of programming via the Internet. Each of these distribution
methods employs digital compression techniques to increase the number of channels available
to consumers and, therefore, the number of movies that may be transmitted. Technological
improvements in this distribution method, particularly "video-on-demand," may make this option
more attractive to consumers and thereby materially diminish the demand for Unit rentals. Such
a consequence could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business.
Foreign Operations
On December 20, 1989, the Company entered into an agreement with Culture Convenience Club,
Co., Ltd. (“CCC”), a Japanese corporation, which is Japan's largest video specialty retailer.
Pursuant to the agreement, the parties formed Rentrak Japan, a Japanese corporation. Rentrak
Japan was formed to implement the PPT System in Japan. The Company provided its PPT
technology and the use of certain trademarks and service marks to Rentrak Japan, and CCC
provided management personnel, operating capital, and adaptation of the PPT technology to meet
Japanese requirements.
Beginning in 1994, the Company became entitled to a royalty of 1.67% for all sales of up to
$47,905,000 plus one-half of one percent of sales greater than $47,905,000 in each royalty year
(June 1 - May 31). Additionally, the Company received one-time royalty payments of $1,000,000
in fiscal year 1995 and $1,000,000 in fiscal year 1999. In December 1999, the Company received
a prepayment of $2,500,000 in exchange for $4,000,000 of credit related to the annual royalty,
which was recognized in revenues as royalties were earned under the terms of the contract.
Effective April 2, 2001 the Company and Rentrak Japan entered into a restructuring agreement of
their relationship. The Company transferred exclusive rights to implement its PPT System within
specified countries in the Far East, including related trademark and other intellectual property
rights, to Rentrak Japan. In exchange for the transfer, Rentrak Japan made a lump sum payment
of $5.7 million to the Company and released certain of the Company’s payment obligations totaling
$1.3 million. As part of the transaction, Rentrak Japan’s obligation to pay annual royalties to the
Company in connection with use of its PPT System was terminated. (See Note 1(b) of the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)
Trademarks, Copyrights, and Proprietary Rights
The Company has registered its "RENTRAK", "PPT", "Pay Per Transaction", "Ontrak",
"BudgetMaker", "DataTrak", "Prize Find" , "Blowout Video", “Fastrak”, “GameTrak”, “RPM”,
“Videolink+”, “Unless You're Rich Enough Already”, “Sportrak”, “Movies For The Hungry Mind”,
“VidAlert”, "Active Home Video", "Movie Wizard", and "Gotta Have It Guarantee" marks under
federal trademark laws. The Company has applied and obtained registered status in several

foreign countries for many of its trademarks.
Software and considers it to be proprietary.

The Company claims a copyright in its RPM

Employees
As of March 31, 2002, including all subsidiaries, the Company employed 284 active employees.
The Company considers its relations with its employees to be good.
Financial Information About Industry Segments
See Note 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information regarding the
Company’s business segments.
ITEM 2.

PROPERTIES

The Company currently maintains its headquarter offices in Portland, Oregon where it leases
48,807 square feet of office space. The lease began on January 1, 1997 and expires on
December 31, 2006.
The Company’s subsidiary, 3PF.COM, Inc., maintains two distribution
facilities in Wilmington, Ohio and one in Columbus, Ohio where it leases 102,400, 121,600 and
388,264 square feet, respectively. These distribution facilities also include administrative office
space. These three distribution facility leases expire on June 30, 2002, December 31, 2010 and
February 28, 2008, respectively. Management believes its office space and distribution facility
space is adequate and suitable for its current operations. However, management does recognize
that the Company currently has excess distribution facility capacity which it is addressing by
attracting new clients and tenants. Management does not anticipate a problem in obtaining
additional suitable space to meet its needs as necessary.

ITEM 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On November 15, 2000, 3PF.COM, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, filed a proceeding with
the American Arbitration Association against Reel.com, Inc., a division of Hollywood
Entertainment Corporation ("Hollywood"), for breach of a servicing, warehousing, and
distribution agreement, and against Hollywood in connection with its guarantee of the
obligations of Reel.com, Inc., under the agreement. 3PF.COM, Inc., sought damages in excess
of $3.3 million, together with prejudgment interest and attorney fees. On August 6, 2001,
Hollywood filed a proceeding with the American Arbitration Association against the Company for
the alleged breach of a settlement agreement among the Company, Hollywood, and two
individuals dated January 23, 2000, relating to the Company's obligation to provide Hollywood
with documents and data with regard to Hollywood's obligation to indemnify the Company
against claims by a movie studio. Hollywood sought damages in the amount of $2.0 million.
Both proceedings were settled in April 2002 by a confidential settlement agreement pursuant to
which Hollywood agreed to pay the Company $1.925 million.
On February 20, 2001, the Company filed a complaint against Ron Berger, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and a director of Rentrak until September 2000, in the Circuit Court of the
State of Oregon for the County of Multnomah (No. 0102-01814), seeking cancellation of shares
of Rentrak common stock acquired by Mr. Berger through an option loan program offered to the
Company's officers in June 2000 and damages for the conversion of an automobile and
computer equipment plus an over-advance payment of business expenses less setoffs. On or
about March 29, 2001, Mr. Berger filed a counterclaim seeking damages of approximately $1.76

million plus attorney fees from Rentrak for conversion of Mr. Berger's director's fees and
dividends from Rentrak Japan, breach of an agreement to compensate Mr. Berger for
cancellation of options to purchase Rentrak stock, failure to pay accumulated wages and
compensation, breach of an agreement to provide options to purchase stock in Rentrak's
subsidiary 3PF.COM, Inc., and failure to provide certain insurance benefits. On June 15, 2001,
the Company filed an amended complaint alleging tort claims arising out of Mr. Berger's
activities as an officer and director of the Company involving Video City, Inc., and seeking
damages of not less than $6.0 million. Effective May 6, 2002, the parties resolved the litigation
pursuant to a confidential settlement agreement pursuant to which the parties agreed to dismiss
their respective lawsuits and to seek nothing further from the other in litigation.
The Company may from time to time also be a party to legal proceedings and claims that arise
in the ordinary course of its business. In the opinion of management, the amount of any
ultimate liability with respect to these potential actions is not expected to materially affect the
financial position or results of operations of the Company as a whole. The Company currently
has no outstanding litigation.
ITEM 4.

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders of the Company through the solicitation of
proxies or otherwise during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report.
PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The Company's common stock, $.001 par value, is traded on the Nasdaq National Market, where
its prices are quoted under the symbol "RENT". As of May 31, 2002 there were approximately
314 holders of record of the Company's common stock. On May 31, 2002, the closing sales price
of the Company’s common stock as quoted on the Nasdaq National Market was $5.90.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
The information under the heading “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the Company’s
Definitive Proxy Statement for its 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, is incorporated herein by reference.

The following table sets forth the reported high and low sales prices of the Company’s
common stock for the periods indicated as regularly quoted on the Nasdaq National Market.

QUARTER ENDED

HIGH

LOW

JUNE 30, 2000

$5.88

$3.12

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

$4.16

$3.00

DECEMBER 31, 2000

$3.69

$1.50

MARCH 31, 2001

$4.09

$2.03

JUNE 30, 2001

$4.90

$2.99

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

$3.74

$2.86

DECEMBER 31, 2001

$5.93

$3.00

MARCH 31, 2002

$8.00

$5.50

The Company issued a total of 45,000 shares of its common stock in March 2002 to a
former financial advisor pursuant to a cashless exercise and in full satisfaction of common
stock purchase warrants related to a total of 200,000 shares of common stock issued in
connection with financial advisory engagement s in 1997 and 1999. The Company relied
on the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933
with respect to the issuance of shares.
DIVIDENDS
Holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to receive dividends if, as, and when
declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available therefore, subject to the
dividend and liquidation rights of any preferred stock that may be issued.
No cash dividends have been paid or declared during the last five fiscal years. The present
policy of the Board of Directors is to retain earnings to provide funds for operation and
expansion of the Company's business. The Company does not intend to pay cash
dividends in the foreseeable future.

ITEM 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)
Year Ended March 31,
2001
2000
1999

2002
Statement of Operations Data
Net revenues:
Order processing fees
Transaction fees
Sell-through fees
Other (2)

1998

16,648
44,114
6,645
35,207

18,563
55,752
6,578
36,974

23,086
61,487
7,811
22,788

22,420
72,835
11,347
19,043

25,313
78,671
9,383
11,060

102,614
76,812
25,802

117,887
93,600
24,287

115,172
91,706
23,466

125,645
103,943
21,702

124,427
100,974
23,453

Selling and administrative expense

20,754

34,455

28,237

17,853

16,248
-

Net (gain) loss on litigation settlements

(1,563)

(225)

(7,792)

1,099

7,895

(2,149)

(1,519)

597

652

14,506

(12,092)

1,502

3,347

7,857

(5,512)

4,515

(451)

(1,304)

(3,199)

8,994

(7,577)

1,051

2,043

4,658

-

-

-

-

Total net revenues
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income (expense) (2)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
discontinued operations and (provision) benefit
for income taxes
Income tax (provision) benefit
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
discontinued operations
Discontinued Operations: (1)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Net income (loss)
Earnings (loss) per share
Diluted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Earnings (loss) per common share

$

8,994 $

(7,577) $

$

0.85 $

(0.63) $

$

0.85 $

(0.63) $

Common shares and common share equivalents
used to compute diluted EPS

Balance Sheet Data
Working Capital
Total Assets

$

2,374
3,425 $

0.10 $
0.22
0.32 $

2,043 $

4,658

0.18 $

0.41

0.18 $

0.41

10,613

11,985

10,759

11,066

11,445

2002

2001

2000

1999

1998

11,636 $
38,612

Long-term Liabilities
496
Stockholders' Equity
17,278
(1) See Note 13 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(2) See Note 1(b) of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

3,643 $
39,126

9,871 $
50,473

1,175
11,387

1,677
18,081

4,586 $
49,457
-

1,062
51,609
-

14,292

13,254

ITEM 7.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward Looking Statements
Certain information included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K (including Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations regarding revenue
growth, gross profit margin and liquidity) constitute forward-looking statements that involve a
number of risks and uncertainties. Forward looking statements may be identified by the use of
forward-looking words such as “may”, “will”, “expects”, “intends”, “anticipates”, “estimates”, or
“continues” or the negative thereof or variations thereon or comparable terminology. The
following factors are among the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from
the forward-looking statements: the Company’s ability to continue to market the PPT System
successfully, the financial stability of the Participating Retailers and their performance of their
obligations under the PPT System, non-renewal of the Company’s line of credit, business
conditions and growth in the video industry and general economic conditions, both domestic and
international; competitive factors, including increased competition, expansion of revenue sharing
programs other than the PPT System by Program Suppliers, new technology, and the continued
availability of Cassettes from Program Suppliers. This Annual Report on Form 10-K further
describes some of these factors.

Results of Operations
RENTRAK CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For The Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000
2002
REVENUES
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales
Selling, general, and administrative
Net gain from litigation settlements

$ 102,614,147 $ 117,886,955 $

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS
Other income (expense)
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BEFORE INCOME TAX (PROVISION) BENEFIT
AND GAIN FROM DISPOSAL OF DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS
Income tax (provision) benefit
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Gain from disposal of discontinued operations
including income tax benefit of $483,502
NET INCOME (LOSS)

2001

$

2000
115,172,414

76,812,474
20,753,587
(1,563,153)
96,002,908

93,600,177
34,455,048
(225,000)
127,830,225

91,706,290
28,236,763
(7,791,880)
112,151,173

6,611,239
7,895,263

(9,943,270)
(2,148,673)

3,021,241
(1,519,378)

14,506,502
(5,512,471)
8,994,031

(12,091,943)
4,514,575
(7,577,368)

1,501,863
(450,559)
1,051,304

8,994,031 $

(7,577,368) $

2,373,502
3,424,806

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001
PPT Operations and Other Continuing Subsidiaries
For the year ended March 31, 2002, the Company’s total consolidated revenue decreased
$15.3 million to $102.6 million from $117.9 million in the prior fiscal year. Total
consolidated revenue includes the following PPT System fees in the PPT business
segment: order processing fees generated when Cassettes and DVD’s (“Units”) are
ordered by and distributed to Retailers; transaction fees generated when Retailers rent
Units to consumers; sell-through fees generated when Retailers sell Units to consumers;
communication fees when Retailers’ point-of-sale systems are connected to the Company’s
information system; and buy out fees when Retailers purchase Units at the end of the lease
term. PPT business segment revenues also include direct revenue sharing fees from data
tracking and reporting services provided by the Company to Studios, as well as charges for
internet services provided by the Company’s subsidiary formovies.Com, Inc. In addition,
total consolidated revenue includes charges to customers of the Company’s subsidiary
3PF.COM, Inc. (“3PF”), which provides e-commerce order processing, fulfillment and
inventory management services, and other revenues which include sales of Units through
the Company’s retail subsidiary BlowOut Video, Inc., and both royalty payments from
Rentrak Japan and from the business restructuring with Rentrak Japan.
The decrease in total consolidated revenue in fiscal 2002 was primarily due to a decrease
in the PPT System revenues in the PPT business segment as the result of: (i) a decline in
the number of total titles released to the PPT System, as well as the number of theatrical
titles released and the box office performance of those titles; and (ii) PPT “output programs”
and other PPT programs that result in an increased total number of Units leased for a
reduced amount of fees per Unit. In addition, PPT System revenue was also affected by
the willingness of program suppliers to engage in direct revenue sharing arrangements with
the largest retailer chains. These changes caused decreases in the Company’s PPT
System order processing-fee revenue as well as its transaction-fee revenue. The PPT
business segment revenue decline was partially offset by an increase in direct revenue
sharing fees as the result of increased business activity from these Studio agreements.
The decrease in total consolidated revenue was additionally due to: (i) decreased revenue
from 3PF’s services resulting primarily from the loss of customers; and (ii) a decline in
revenue from Blowout Video, Inc. due to reductions in business activity and the closure of
four of its retail stores during the fiscal year. These revenue decreases were partially offset
by the royalty revenue as the result of a business restructuring with Rentrak Japan in fiscal
2002.
In fiscal 2002, PPT business segment revenues were 73.7 million, a decrease of $12.0
million, or 14 percent, from $85.7 million in fiscal 2001. During the year, order processingfee revenue decreased to $16.9 million from $19.4 million in fiscal 2001, a decrease of $2.5
million, or 13 percent. Transaction-fee revenue totaled $44.1 million, a decrease of $11.6
million, or 21 percent, from $55.7 million the previous fiscal year. Sell-through revenue was
$6.6 million in fiscal 2002 as compared to $6.6 million in fiscal 2001. Communication fee
revenue was $1.3 million in fiscal 2002 as compared to $1.5 million in fiscal 2001, a
decrease of $0.2 million, or 13 percent.
Also included in the PPT business segment are the following revenues: (i) direct revenue
sharing fees totaling $4.2 million in fiscal 2002, an increase of $2.3 million, or 121 percent,
from the $1.9 million in fiscal 2001; and (iii) $0.6 million in other royalty and other revenues

earned in fiscal 2002.
Royalty and other revenue from Rentrak Japan totaled $6.4 million during fiscal 2002, as a
result of the business restructuring with Rentrak Japan, compared to $1.1 million in Rentrak
Japan royalty revenue in the previous fiscal year.
Cost of sales for the PPT business segment in fiscal 2002 decreased to $56.8 million from
$67.3 million the prior fiscal year, a decrease of $10.5 million, or 16 percent. The change is
primarily due to the factors that led to changes in revenue as noted above. In fiscal 2002
the Company’s PPT business segment gross profit margin, excluding the royalty revenue
from Rentrak Japan, increased to 23 percent from 21 percent the previous year.
PPT business segment selling and administrative expenses were $11.6 million in fiscal
2002 compared to $25.1 million in fiscal 2001. This decrease of $13.5 million, or 53
percent, was primarily attributable to the following items all reported in the quarter ended
September 30, 2000: (i) a $1.3 million severance payment to the Company’s former
chairman and chief executive officer; (ii) $0.6 million in legal costs and proxy solicitation
costs incurred by the Company related to the proxy contest at the 2000 annual
shareholders meeting; (iii) $0.4 million in costs to reimburse the dissident shareholder
group for their legal and other costs associated with the proxy contest; (iv) $6.1 million of
costs associated with the reserve or write-off of investments related to the Company’s
Retailer Financing Program; (v) $1.0 million in write-offs of investments and other assets
deemed by the Company to be non-realizable; (vi) $1.4 million in write-offs of accounts
receivable based on the Company’s assessment of the collectibility of those accounts due
to changes in the financial condition and payment ability of those customers and (vii) a $0.5
million loss realized on the sale of stock received previously by the Company pursuant to
the settlement of a claim with a prior customer. Additionally, the Company’s legal costs in
fiscal 2002, related to the PPT business, decreased by an approximate $1.6 million from
the prior fiscal year.
The net gain from the litigation settlement with a prior customer of the Company, Hollywood
Entertainment, was $1,563,000 for fiscal 2002 compared to $225,000 for fiscal 2001, an
increase of approximately $1.4 million. While the settlements in both fiscal years were
related to the same prior customer, they related to separate claims. The $1,563,000 of
proceeds from the claim settled in fiscal 2002 was received in May 2002 from Hollywood
Entertainment and related to a breach of a fulfillment contract while most of the proceeds
from the settlement relating to the $225,000 recognized in fiscal 2001 were received in
fiscal 2000 when the claim was finalized; the $225,000 represents the receipt of an
insurance settlement in fiscal 2001 relating to this claim.
PPT other income (expense) was an expense of $2.1 million in fiscal 2001 compared to
income of $7.9 million for fiscal 2002, an increase of $10.0 million. This increase is
primarily due to: (i) a $0.1 million decrease in interest income; (ii) a $0.8 million decrease in
interest expense due to the payoff of the line of credit at the beginning of fiscal 2002; (iii) a
decrease in loss on the sale of investment securities, a loss realized on the sale of stock
received previously by the Company pursuant to the settlement of a claim with a customer
and the write-off of assets, or write-down of various assets to their net realizable value,
totaling $1.7 million in fiscal 2001 compared to $0 in fiscal 2002; and (iv) a $8.0 million
recognition of other income related to the business restructuring with Rentrak Japan in
fiscal 2002.

As a result of the above, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, the Company recorded
pre-tax income of $19.9 million, or 25 percent of total revenue, from its PPT business,
segment, including royalty revenue and other income from the Rentrak Japan business
restructuring, compared to a pre-tax loss of $7.6 million, or 9 percent of total revenue, in the
prior fiscal year.
The Cassette and DVD distribution business is a highly competitive industry that is rapidly
changing. The effect of these changes could have a material impact on the Company’s
operations. Item 1. Business—Competition of this report further describes certain of these
factors.
Included in other consolidated revenue are the results from other subsidiaries, primarily the
operations of 3PF.COM, Inc. (“3PF”) and Blowout Video, Inc.
Total revenues from 3PF decreased to $17.5 million for fiscal 2002 compared to $23.4
million for fiscal 2001, a decrease of $5.9 million, or 25 percent. This decrease was
primarily due to the loss of two key customers, one at the end of fiscal 2001 and the other
early in 2002, whose fiscal 2001 revenues totaled approximately $9.7 million, offset partially
by significant fiscal 2002 growth of 3PF’s largest customer and modest revenues from the
addition of new customers in fiscal 2002. Cost of sales was $16.9 million, a decrease of
$4.8 million from the $21.7 million recorded in fiscal 2001. This decrease is primarily due to
the corresponding decrease in revenue noted above, offset by the on-going carrying cost of
the unoccupied and unutilized distribution facility capacity. As a percentage of total 3PF
revenue, total cost of sales was 97 percent and 93 percent for fiscal 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Selling and administrative expenses decreased to $4.5 million in fiscal 2002
from $5.5 million in fiscal 2001, a decrease of $1.0 million. As a percentage of total
revenue, selling and administrative expenses increased to 26 percent for fiscal 2002 from
24 percent for the prior fiscal year. The $1.0 million decrease was primarily due to a $0.7
million recovery of an amount reserved in fiscal 2001 for the anticipated non-collection of
one of 3PF’s trade accounts due the Company as the result of a bankruptcy filing by the
customer. This decrease was also the result of decreased compensation, advertising,
travel and entertainment expenses and other costs as the Company adjusted its overhead
infrastructure to better fit the operating size of its business. The Company expects to
continually evaluate its selling and administrative expenses and appropriately align them in
conjunction with the overall size of business it is operating.
3PF other income (expense) was an expense of $250,000 in fiscal 2002 compared to $0 in
fiscal 2001. This expense was due to a reserve for the expected non-realization of an
investment previously made in a former customer.
As a result of the foregoing factors, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, 3PF recorded
a pre-tax loss of $4.1 million, or 23 percent of total revenue. This compares with pre-tax
loss of $3.8 million, or 16 percent of total revenue, in fiscal 2001.
Total revenue from BlowOut Video, Inc. decreased to $7.3 million in fiscal 2002 from $11.7
million in fiscal 2001, a decrease of $4.4 million, or 38 percent, primarily due to the decline
in overall business activity and the closure of four of its stores during fiscal 2002. Cost of
sales was $5.5 million, a decrease of $3.2 million from the $8.7 million recorded in fiscal
2001. Total cost of sales as a percentage of total revenue was 75 percent and 74 percent
for fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively. As a result, the gross margin decreased to $1.8
million in fiscal 2002 from $3.0 million in fiscal 2002. Selling and administrative expenses

decreased to $3.1 million in fiscal 2002 from $3.6 million in fiscal 2001, a decrease of $0.5
million, as management made adjustments to better align the overhead structure with the
decline in business activity and operating size. As a percentage of total revenue for
BlowOut Video, Inc., selling and administrative expenses increased to 42 percent for fiscal
2002 from 31 percent for the prior fiscal year.
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, BlowOut Video, Inc. recorded a pre-tax loss of
$1.3 million, or 18 percent of total revenue. This compares with a pre-tax loss of $0.7
million, or 6 percent of total revenue, in fiscal 2001.
As a result of the above, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, the Company recorded
consolidated pre-tax income from continuing operations of $14.5 million, or 14 percent of
total consolidated revenue, compared to a consolidated pre-tax loss from continuing
operations of $12.1 million, or 10 percent of total consolidated revenue, in the prior fiscal
year.
The consolidated effective tax rate providing the tax provision for continuing operations for
fiscal 2002 was 38.0 percent, compared to a consolidated effective tax rate of 37.3 percent
providing the tax benefit for fiscal 2001. The Company expects to realize the remaining tax
benefit at March 31, 2002, created in fiscal 2001 by net operating loss carryforwards, in
future periods.
Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000
Continuing Operations - PPT Operations and Other Continuing Subsidiaries
For the year ended March 31, 2001, the Company’s total consolidated revenue increased
$2.7 million to $117.9 million from $115.2 million in the prior fiscal year. Total consolidated
revenue includes the following PPT System fees in the PPT business segment: order
processing fees generated when Cassettes and DVD’s (“Units”) are ordered by and
distributed to Retailers; transaction fees generated when Retailers rent Units to consumers;
sell-through fees generated when Retailers sell Units to consumers; communication fees
when Retailers’ point-of-sale systems are connected to the Company’s information system
and buy out fees when Retailers purchase Units at the end of the lease term. PPT
business segment revenues also include direct revenue sharing fees from data tracking
and reporting services provided by the Company to Studios, as well as charges for internet
services provided by the Company’s subsidiary formovies.Com, Inc. In addition, total
consolidated revenue includes charges to customers of the Company’s subsidiary
3PF.COM, Inc., which provides e-commerce order processing, fulfillment and inventory
management services, and other revenues which include sales of Units through the
Company’s retail subsidiary BlowOut Video, Inc. and royalty payments from Rentrak Japan.
The increase in total consolidated revenue was primarily due to: (i) increased revenue from
services provided by 3PF.COM, Inc.; and partially offset by (ii) the number of total titles
released to the PPT System, as well as the number of theatrical titles released and the box
office performance of those titles. In addition, PPT revenue was also affected by a
reduction in the total number of Cassettes leased under the PPT System, due in part to
Studios offering more titles under various “copy depth” programs, intended to increase the
number of Units in distribution by lowering the cost of rental Units to Retailers, than they
have in the past and to the willingness of program suppliers to engage in direct revenue
sharing arrangements with the largest retailer chains. These changes caused decreases in

order processing and transaction revenue.
In fiscal 2001, PPT business segment revenues were $85.7 million, a decrease of $10.7
million, or 11 percent, from $96.4 million in fiscal 2000. During the year, order processingfee revenue decreased to $19.4 million from $23.4 million in fiscal 2000, a decrease of $4.0
million, or 17 percent. Transaction-fee revenue totaled $55.7 million, a decrease of $5.7
million, or 9 percent, from $61.4 million the previous fiscal year. Sell-through revenue was
$6.6 million in fiscal 2001 as compared to $7.8 million in fiscal 2000, a decrease of $1.2
million, or 15 percent. Communication fee revenue was $1.5 million in fiscal 2001 as
compared to $1.8 million in fiscal 2000, a decrease of $0.3 million or 17 percent.
Also included in the PPT business segment are the following revenues: (i) direct revenue
sharing fees totaling $1.9 million in fiscal 2001, an increase of $0.4 million, or 27 percent,
from the $1.5 million in fiscal 2000; and (ii) $0.6 million in other royalty and other revenues
earned in fiscal 2001, an increase of $0.1 million, or 20 percent from the $0.5 million in
fiscal 2000.
Royalty revenue from Rentrak Japan totaled $1.1 million during fiscal 2001, a decrease of
$0.7 million or 39 percent from $1.8 million the previous year.
Cost of sales for the PPT business segment in fiscal 2001 decreased to $67.3 million from
$79.6 million the prior year, a decrease of $12.3 million or 15 percent. The change is
primarily due to the factors that led to changes in revenue as noted above. In fiscal 2001,
the Company’s PPT business segment gross profit margin increased to 21 percent from 17
percent the previous fiscal year.
PPT business segment selling and administrative expenses were $25.1 million in fiscal
2001 compared to $22.5 million in fiscal 2000. This increase of $2.6 million, or 12 percent,
was primarily attributable to the following items all reported in the quarter ended September
30, 2000: (i) a $1.3 million severance payment to the Company’s former chairman and chief
executive officer; (ii) $0.6 million in legal costs and proxy solicitation costs incurred by the
Company related to the proxy contest at the 2000 annual shareholders meeting and (iii)
$0.4 million in costs to reimburse the dissident shareholder group for their legal and other
costs associated with the proxy contest. While the Company wrote off or reserved
approximately $8.5 million in assets related to the Retailer Financing Program, investments
and accounts receivable during the quarter ended September 30, 2000, it also increased
reserves and wrote off other assets totaling approximately $9.0 million during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2000.
The net gain from the litigation settlement with a prior customer of the Company,
Hollywood Entertainment, was $225,000 for fiscal 2001 compared to $7.8 million for fiscal
2000, a decrease of approximately $7.6 million. Most of the proceeds from this
settlement were received in fiscal 2000 when the claim was finalized; the $225,000
represents the receipt of an insurance settlement in fiscal 2001 relating to this claim.
PPT other income (expense) increased from an expense of $1.4 million in fiscal 2000 to an
expense of $2.1 million for fiscal 2001, an increase of $0.7 million. This increase is
primarily due to: (i) a decrease in interest income; (ii) an increase in interest expense due to
an increased use of the line of credit in fiscal 2001; (iii) an increase in loss on the sale of
investment securities; (iv) a $0.5 million loss realized on the sale of stock received
previously by the Company pursuant to the settlement of a claim with a customer and (v)

the write-off of assets or write-down of various assets to their net realizable value.
As a result of the above, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, the Company recorded a
pre-tax loss of $7.4 million, or 9 percent of total revenue, from its PPT business segment,
including royalty revenue from Rentrak Japan, compared to pre-tax income of $2.9 million,
or 3 percent of total revenue, in the prior fiscal year.
The Cassette and DVD distribution business is a highly competitive industry that is rapidly
changing. The effect of these changes could have a material impact on the Company’s
operations. Item 1. Business--Competition of this report further describes certain of these
factors.
Included in total consolidated revenue are the results from other subsidiaries, primarily the
operations of 3PF.COM, Inc. (“3PF”) and Blowout Video, Inc.
Total revenues from 3PF increased to $23.4 million for fiscal 2001 compared to $11.6
million for fiscal 2000, an increase of $11.8 million, or 102 percent. This increase was
primarily due to increased volume from existing customers. Cost of sales was $21.7
million, an increase of $11.6 million over the $10.1 million recorded in fiscal 2000. This
increase is due to: (1) a $1.1 million increase in occupancy cost as 3PF expanded its
operations into a new facility late in fiscal 2000 to provide additional operating capacity for
business growth; (2) a $4.5 million increase in freight cost in conjunction with the overall
increase in business growth and revenue; and (3) a $4.3 million increase in warehouse
labor cost in conjunction with the overall increase in business growth and revenue. As a
percentage of total 3PF revenue, total cost of sales was 93 percent and 87 percent for fiscal
2001 and 2000, respectively. Selling and administrative expenses increased to $5.5 million
in fiscal 2001 from $2.6 million in fiscal 2000, an increase of $2.9 million. As a percentage
of total revenue, selling and administrative expenses increased to 24 percent for fiscal 2001
from 22 percent for the prior year. This $2.9 million increase was due to increased
compensation, advertising, travel and entertainment expenses, depreciation and other
costs as the Company invested in the overhead infrastructure to support growth in its
business. Additionally, the Company recognized $0.9 million in bad debt expense during
fiscal 2001 primarily relating to a customer that filed for bankruptcy. The Company
anticipates its selling and administrative expenses to moderate or lessen in the future in
conjunction with the overall size of business it is operating.
As a result of the foregoing factors, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, 3PF recorded
a pre-tax loss of $3.8 million, or 16 percent of total revenue. This compares with pre-tax
loss of $1.1 million, or 9 percent of total revenue, in fiscal 2000.
Total revenue from BlowOut Video, Inc. increased to $11.7 million in fiscal 2001 from $9.5
million in fiscal 2000, an increase of $2.2 million, or 23 percent. Cost of sales was $8.7
million, an increase of $2.7 million over the $6.0 million recorded in fiscal 2000. Total cost of
sales as a percentage of total revenue was 74 percent and 63 percent for fiscal 2001 and
2000, respectively. As a result, the gross margin decreased to $3.0 million in fiscal 2001
from $3.5 million in fiscal 2000. Selling and administrative expenses increased to $3.6
million in fiscal 2001 from $3.0 million in fiscal 2000, an increase of $0.6 million. As a
percentage of total revenue for BlowOut Video, Inc., selling and administrative expenses
decreased to 31 percent for fiscal 2001 from 32 percent for the prior year.
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, BlowOut Video, Inc. recorded a pre-tax loss of

$0.7 million, or 6 percent of total revenue. This compares with pre-tax income of $0.3
million, or 3 percent of total revenue, in fiscal 2000.
As a result of the above, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, the Company recorded a
consolidated pre-tax loss from continuing operations of $12.1 million, or 10 percent of total
consolidated revenue, compared to consolidated pre-tax income from continuing operations
of $1.5 million, or 1 percent of total consolidated revenue, in the prior fiscal year.
The consolidated effective tax rate providing the tax benefit for continuing operations for
fiscal 2001 was 37.3 percent, compared to a consolidated effective tax rate of 30.0 percent
providing the tax provision for continuing operations for fiscal 2000 (see Discontinued
Operations below).
Discontinued Operations
On November 26, 1996, the Company made a distribution to its shareholders of
1,457,343 shares of common stock of its then subsidiary BlowOut Entertainment, Inc.
(“BlowOut”). BlowOut is not related to the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary BlowOut
Video, Inc. The operations of BlowOut were reflected as discontinued operations in the
March 31, 1996 consolidated financial statements. During the fiscal year ended March
31, 2000, the Company recorded a gain on the disposal of discontinued operations of
$1.9 million related to BlowOut, as the liability related to BlowOut contingencies was less
than estimated. The Company also reduced the valuation allowance that was recorded
against the deferred tax asset related to liabilities of discontinued operations. This
reduction of approximately $0.5 million in the valuation allowance was recorded as an
income tax benefit from discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations. There was no remaining liability related to the discontinued
operations at March 31, 2002.
FINANCIAL CONDITION
At March 31, 2002, total assets were $38.6 million, a decrease of $0.5 million from $39.1
million a year earlier. The Company had $12.0 million of cash on hand at March 31, 2002,
including $1.0 million of restricted cash, compared to $3.3 million at March 31, 2001, an
increase of $8.7 million (see the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements). Net accounts receivable decreased
$0.6 million from $11.9 million at March 31, 2001 to $11.3 million at March 31, 2002,
including a $1.0 million reduction in the allowance for doubtful accounts, primarily due to the
recovery of a specific reserve established in fiscal 2001 for the anticipated non-collection of
one of 3PF’s trade accounts as the result of a bankruptcy filing by the customer.
Inventory decreased $1.0 million from $3.5 million at March 31, 2001 to $2.5 million at
March 31, 2002 primarily due to the reduction of business activity and closure of four retail
stores at BlowOut Video, Inc. during fiscal 2002. Property and equipment decreased $0.5
million from $4.4 million at March 31, 2001 to $3.9 million at March 31, 2002, primarily due
to the write-down of 3PF equipment value. Total deferred tax assets decreased $6.4 million
from $9.7 million at March 31, 2001 to $3.3 million at March 31, 2002, primarily due to the
utilization of a tax loss carry forward created from the loss from continuing operations
during fiscal 2001. The Company believes it will realize the deferred tax asset as of March
31, 2002 in future periods. Other assets decreased $0.3 million from $4.8 million at March
31, 2001 to $4.4 million at March 31, 2002.
.

At March 31, 2002, total liabilities were $21.3 million, a decrease of $6.4 million from $27.7
million at March 31, 2001. The line of credit decreased to $0 at March 31, 2002 from $1.9
million at March 31, 2001 due to the payoff of the line balance at the beginning of fiscal
2002 primarily from working capital available from the business restructuring with Rentrak
Japan and trade receivable collections. Accounts payable decreased $0.4 million from
$18.7 million at March 31, 2001 to $18.3 million at March 31, 2002. Accrued liabilities
decreased $2.7 million from $3.4 million at March 31, 2001 to $0.7 million at March 31,
2002 primarily due to the change in estimate for accrued tax liability totaling $1.5 million
and the elimination of liabilities associated with the business restructuring with Rentrak
Japan totaling $0.6 million. Total deferred revenue decreased approximately $1.2 million
from $1.6 million at March 31, 2001 to $0.4 million at March 31, 2002, primarily due to the
forgiveness of the remaining unearned prepaid royalty income credit by Rentrak Japan in
the business restructuring.
Accordingly, at March 31, 2002, stockholders’ equity was $17.3 million, an increase of $5.9
million from $11.4 million at March 31, 2001. Most of this increase in stockholders’ equity is
attributable to: (i) the reduction in common stock and capital in excess of par value as the
result of the repurchase of stock from Rentrak Japan in the business restructuring and the
repurchase of additional stock under the Company’s stock repurchase program; and (ii) the
reduction in the accumulated deficit due to the consolidated net income of $9.0 million for
fiscal 2002, .
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
At March 31, 2002, the Company had cash and other liquid investments of $12.0 million,
including $1.0 million of restricted cash, compared to $3.3 million at March 31, 2001. At
March 31, 2002 the Company's current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was 1.56
compared to 1.14 a year earlier.
In May 2000 the Company obtained a line of credit with a lender in an amount not to
exceed the lesser of (a) $12 million or (b) the sum of 85% of the net amount of eligible
accounts receivable. Interest under the credit line was payable monthly at the bank’s
prime rate plus ¼ percent (5.0 percent at March 31, 2002). The line was secured by
substantially all of the Company’s assets. The terms of the credit agreement included
financial covenants requiring: (1) $15 million of tangible net worth to be maintained at all
times; (2) a consolidated net profit to be achieved each fiscal year equal to or exceeding
$1.00; and (3) $5 million of working capital to be maintained at all times. The agreement
also restricted the amount of loans and indebtedness and limits the payment of dividends
on the Company’s stock, among other requirements. The Company was in compliance
with the three financial covenants as of March 31, 2002. At March 31, 2002, the Company
had $0 of outstanding borrowings under this agreement.
In May 2002 the Company obtained a replacement line of credit with a new lender for the
previous line of credit noted above, which was terminated at that time. The replacement
line of credit is in the amount of $4.5 million. Interest under this credit line is variable based
on the London Interbank Offering Rate (LIBOR) plus 2 percent. The line is secured by a
first priority blanket lien on all of the Company’s assets. The terms of the credit agreement
include financial covenants requiring: (1) a minimum current ratio of 1.10:1.0, measured
quarterly; (2) a consolidated quarterly and year-to-date net income equal to or exceeding
$1.00; (3) a leverage ratio of 1.50:1.0, measured quarterly and (4) $16 million of tangible
net worth, measured quarterly. The agreement expires July 1, 2003. The Company

anticipates that it will be in compliance with these covenants throughout the term of the
agreement.
In 1992, the Company established a Retailer Loan Program whereby, on a selective basis,
it provided financing to Participating Retailers that the Company believed had the potential
for substantial growth in the industry. The underlying rationale for this program was the
belief that the Company could expand its business and at the same time participate in the
rapid growth experienced by the video retailers in which it invested. During fiscal 2001, the
Company discontinued new financings under this program and provided reserves of $6.6
million representing the entire outstanding balance of the program loans. The Company
continues to seek enforcement of agreements entered into in connection with this program
in accordance with their terms to the extent practicable.
On March 22, 1999, BlowOut Entertainment, Inc. (“BlowOut”), a former subsidiary of the
Company, filed a petition under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code. In 1996, the
Company agreed to guarantee any amounts outstanding under BlowOut’s credit facility. As
of March 31, 2002, the balance remaining payable under this obligation was paid in full.
The Company’s sources of liquidity include its cash balance, cash generated from
operations and its available credit resources. Based on the Company’s current budget and
projected cash needs, the Company believes these available sources of liquidity will be
sufficient to fund the Company’s operations and capital requirements for the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2003.
Critical Accounting Policies
The Company considers as its most critical accounting policies those that require the use of
estimates and assumptions, specifically, accounts receivable reserves and studio guarantee
reserves. In developing these estimates and assumptions, the Company takes into
consideration historical experience, current and expected economic conditions and other
relevant data. Please refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a full
discussion of the Company’s accounting policies.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Credit limits are established through a process of reviewing the financial history and stability of
each customer. The Company regularly evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable by
monitoring past due balances. If it is determined that a customer may be unable to meet its
financial obligations, a specific reserve is established based on the amount the Company
expects to recover. An additional general reserve is provided based on aging of accounts
receivable and the Company’s historical collection experience. If circumstances change related
to specific customers, overall aging of accounts receivable or collection experience, the
Company’s estimate of the recoverability of accounts receivable could materially change.
Studio Reserves
The Company has entered into guarantee contracts with certain program suppliers
providing titles for distribution under the PPT system. These contracts guarantee the
suppliers minimum payments. The Company, using historical experience and year to
date rental experience for each title, estimates the projected revenue to be generated
under each guarantee. The Company establishes reserves for titles that are projected to

experience a shortage under the provisions of the guarantee. The Company continually
reviews these factors and makes adjustments to the reserves as needed. Actual results
could differ from these estimates and could have a material effect on the recorded studio
reserves.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Company has considered the provisions of Financial Reporting Release No. 48
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies for Derivative Financial Instruments and Derivative
Commodity Instruments, and Disclosure of Quantitative and Qualitative Information about
Market Risk Inherent in Derivative Financial Instruments, Other Financial Instruments and
Derivative Commodity Instruments.” The Company had no holdings of derivative financial
or commodity instruments at March 31, 2002. A review of the Company’s other financial
instruments and risk exposures at that date revealed that the Company had exposure to
interest rate risk. The Company utilized sensitivity analyses to assess the potential effect of
this risk and concluded that near-term changes in interest rates should not materially
adversely affect the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Rentrak Corporation:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Rentrak Corporation and
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the year then ended. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Rentrak Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary consolidated information for the year ended March 31, 2002 included in
Schedule II required by the Securities and Exchange Commission is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole.

Portland, Oregon
May 24, 2002 (except as to the second paragraph of Note 5, which is as of May 30, 2002)

Report of Independent Public Accountants
To Rentrak Corporation:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Rentrak
Corporation (an Oregon corporation) and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended March 31,2001. These consolidated financial statements and the schedule
referred to below are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Rentrak Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001 and 2000 and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March
31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The schedule listed in the index of financial statements is presented for purposes of
complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and is not part of the basic
consolidated financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state in all
material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.
Arthur Andersen LLP
Portland, Oregon
May 23, 2001

* This report is a copy of a previously issued Arthur Andersen LLP report and this report has not been
reissued by Arthur Andersen LLP.

RENTRAK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
March 31, 2002 and 2001
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $1,086,143 and $2,090,075
Advances to program suppliers
Inventory
Income tax receivable
Deferred tax asset
Other current assets

2002
$

12,028,684

3,322,917

11,328,794
1,101,514
2,515,778
70,000
2,295,567
3,134,665

11,854,642
1,328,165
3,514,354
279,160
7,319,266
2,589,090

32,475,002

30,207,594

3,907,631
1,002,882
1,226,812

4,439,773
2,419,634
2,059,247

$

38,612,327

39,126,248

$

—
18,339,610
749,279
1,371,064
379,106
—

1,917,705
18,699,289
3,418,043
1,127,785
1,245,643
156,046

20,839,059

26,564,511

—
495,586

379,104
795,875

495,586

1,174,979

—

—

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Deferred tax asset
Other assets
Total assets

2001

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Line of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensation
Deferred revenue
Net current liabilities of discontinued operations
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Deferred revenue
Other
Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value. Authorized 10,000,000 shares
Common stock, $0.001 par value. Authorized 30,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding 9,866,283 shares in 2002 and
12,235,621 shares in 2001
Capital in excess of par value
Notes receivable
Cumulative other comprehensive income (loss)
Accumulated deficit
Deferred charge – warrants
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

9,866
41,730,216
(377,565)
180,453
(23,910,288)
(355,000)

12,236
52,471,599
(7,728,186)
(49,572)
(32,904,319)
(415,000)

17,277,682

11,386,758

38,612,327

39,126,248

RENTRAK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000

Revenues:
PPT
Other

$

Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Selling and administrative
Net gain from litigation settlements (note 10)
Income (loss) from operations
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on investments
Other
Income from continuing operations
before income tax (benefit)
provision and gain from disposal
of discontinued operations
Income tax benefit (provision)
Net income (loss) from continuing
operations

2002

2001

2000

72,843,847
29,770,300

84,261,793
33,625,162

95,182,063
19,990,351

102,614,147

117,886,955

115,172,414

76,812,474
20,753,587
(1,563,153)

93,600,177
34,455,048
(225,000)

91,706,290
28,236,763
(7,791,880)

96,002,908

127,830,225

112,151,173

6,611,239

(9,943,270)

3,021,241

195,628
(17,598)
—
7,717,233

307,240
(768,599)
(1,687,314)
—

743,464
(669,373)
(1,207,483)
(385,986)

7,895,263

(2,148,673)

(1,519,378)

14,506,502

(12,091,943)

1,501,863

(5,512,471)

4,514,575

(450,559)

8,994,031

(7,577,368)

1,051,304

Gain from disposal of discontinued operations,
including income tax benefit of $483,502
Net income (loss)
Earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss)
Diluted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

—

—

2,373,502

$

8,994,031

(7,577,368)

3,424,806

$

0.86
—

(0.63)
—

0.10
0.23

$

0.86

(0.63)

0.33

$

0.85
—

(0.63)
—

0.10
0.22

$

0.85

(0.63)

0.32

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(1,496)
—
—

(1,495,750)
—
—

9,866,283

9,866

—
—
—

227
87

—
—
—

(1,188)

227,812
87,000

12,236

(1,188,400)

12,235,621

—
—

—

—
—
—

1,721
—

10,515

—
—
—

1,721,060
—

10,514,561

—
—
—

—

—

10,440
75
—

$

$

74,613
—

10,439,948

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Balance at March 31, 2002

Income tax benefit from stock option exercise
Cancellation of notes receivable
Amortization of warrants

Total comprehensive income

Repurchase of common stock
Issuance of common stock under employee
stock option plans
Issuance of common stock
Repurchase of common stock for cancellation
of notes receivable
Net income
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investment
securities, net of tax
Cumulative Translation Adjustments

Balance at March 31, 2001

Issuance of notes receivable
Amortization of warrants

Total comprehensive income

Issuance of common stock under employee
stock option plans
Net income
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investment
securities, net of tax

Balance at March 31, 2000

Income tax benefit from stock option exercise
Issuance of warrants
Amortization of warrants

Total comprehensive income

Issuance of common stock under employee
stock option plans
Net income
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investment
securities, net of tax

Balance at March 31, 1999

Common stock
Number of
shares
Amount

41,730,216

261,819
—
—

—

(7,349,125)
—

732,511
136,473

(4,523,061)

52,471,599

—
—

—

8,026,400
—

44,445,199

27,699
544,139
—

—

228,882
—

43,644,479

Capital in
excess of
par value

(377,565)

—
7,350,621
—

—

—

—

—

(7,728,186)

(7,728,186)
—

—

—
—

—

—
—
—

—

—
—

—

Notes
receivable

180,453

—
—
—

49,572
180,453

—

—

—

(49,572)

—
—

215,112

—
—

(264,684)

—
—
—

(402,431)

—
—

137,747

Cumulative
other
comprehensive
income

Years ended March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

RENTRAK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(23,910,288)

—
—
—

—

8,994,031

—

—

(32,904,319)

—
—

—

—
(7,577,368)

(25,326,951)

—
—
—

—

—
3,424,806

(28,751,757)

Accumulated
deficit

(355,000)

—
—
60,000

—

—

—

—

(415,000)

—
368,492

—

—
—

(783,492)

—
(544,139)
509,652

—

—
—

(749,005)

Deferred
charge
warrants

17,277,682

261,819
7,350,621
60,000

49,572
180,453

(7,350,621)
8,994,031

732,738
136,560

(4,524,249)

11,386,758

(7,728,186)
368,492

215,112

8,028,121
(7,577,368)

18,080,587

27,699
—
509,652

(402,431)

228,957
3,424,806

14,291,904

Total

$

$

$

9,224,056

49,572
180,453

8,994,031

(7,362,256)

215,112

(7,577,368)

3,022,375

(402,431)

3,424,806

Comprehensive
income (loss)

RENTRAK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000
2002
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations
(Gain) loss on disposition of assets
Loss on write-down of property and equipment
Gain on litigation settlement
Depreciation and amortization
Write-off of intangibles
Amortization of warrants
Provision (credit) for doubtful accounts
Retailer financing program reserves
Reserves on advances to program suppliers
Deferred income taxes
Net proceeds from litigation settlement
Change in specific accounts:
Accounts receivable
Advances to program suppliers
Inventory
Income tax receivable
Notes receivable and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and compensation
Deferred revenue and other liabilities
Net current liabilities of discontinued operations

$

2001

2000

8,994,031

(7,577,368)

3,424,806

—
(7,802,747)
425,000
—
1,438,449
—
60,000
(1,546,301)
—
1,629,105
5,171,886
—

—
597,124
—
—
1,266,515
—
368,492
7,758,211
1,333,191
106,781
(4,646,420)
—

(2,373,502)
1,207,483
—
(7,791,880)
1,780,966
421,675
509,652
6,341,032
(373,394)
110,918
(900,272)
1,847,505

2,072,149
(1,402,454)
998,576
209,160
(545,575)
(359,679)
(925,485)
(1,365,477)
(156,046)

4,184,677
1,547,820
162,449
(109,860)
2,106,259
(6,778,293)
423,558
(756,912)
(274,877)

(3,231,008)
(253,422)
(1,084,620)
2,864,901
1,227,099
7,233,746
357,860
3,077,119
(942,341)

6,894,592

(288,653)

13,454,323

(1,379,934)
—
—
—
—
4,076,237
797,028

(2,947,221)
—
—
—
1,605,555
—
(792,672)

(1,790,501)
(384,500)
228,539
(398,122)
975,305
—
(6,693)

3,493,331

(2,134,338)

(1,375,972)

(1,917,705)
—
(633,749)
732,738
136,560

1,917,705
(500,000)
—
299,932
—

(7,925,000)
(2,500,000)
—
228,957
—

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

(1,682,156)

1,717,637

(10,196,043)

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

8,705,767

(705,354)

1,882,308

3,322,917

4,028,271

2,145,963

12,028,684

3,322,917

4,028,271

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Investments in retailer financing program
Proceeds from retailer financing program
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Proceeds from sale of investment in Rentrak Japan
Reductions (additions) of other assets and intangibles
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowings (payments) on line of credit
Net borrowing (payments) on notes payable
Repurchase of common stock
Issuance of common stock
Issuance of common stock to non-employees

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

(1)

(a)

Business of Companies, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, and Other
Items

Introduction
Rentrak Corporation (the Company) (an Oregon corporation) is principally engaged in the
processing of information regarding the rental and sale of video cassettes and DVD’s
(“Units”) and the distribution of prerecorded Units to the home video market throughout the
United States and Canada using its Pay-Per-Transaction (PPT) revenue sharing program.
Under its PPT program, the Company enters into contracts to lease Units from program
suppliers (producers of motion pictures and licensees and distributors of home video
cassettes and DVD’s ) which are then leased to retailers for a percentage of the rentals
charged by the retailers.
The Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, 3PF.COM, Inc. (3PF), provides e-fulfillment order
processing and inventory management services to e-tailers, wholesalers, and businesses
requiring just-in-time fulfillment.
The Company’s wholly owned subsidiary BlowOut Video, Inc. sells video cassettes and
DVDs through its three retail video stores that operate under the name of BlowOut Video.

(b)

Rentrak Japan
In December 1989, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with Culture
Convenience Club Co., Ltd. (CCC), Rentrak’s joint venture partner in Rentrak Japan, to
develop the Company’s PPT distribution and information processing business in certain
markets throughout the world.
On June 16, 1994, the Company and CCC amended the agreement. Pursuant to this
amendment, the Company received a royalty of 1.67% for all sales of up to $47,905,000,
plus one-half of 1% (0.5%) of sales greater than $47,905,000 in each fiscal year. In
addition, the Company received a one-time royalty of $2 million, of which $1 million was
paid in fiscal 1995 and $1 million was paid in fiscal 1999. The term of the Agreement was
extended from the year 2001 to the year 2039
In December 1999, the Company received a prepayment of $2,500,000 in exchange for
$4,000,000 of credit related to the annual royalty described above. This credit was being
recognized as revenue as royalties were earned under the terms of the contract. As
discussed below in April 2001, this contract was effectively terminated with Rentrak Japan
forfeiting their rights to the remaining $700,000 prepayment.
Effective April 2, 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with Rentrak Japan
amending the former agreement. As a result of the amended agreement, the Company
granted Rentrak Japan PPT operating rights in Japan, the Philippines, Singapore, Taiwan,
Hong Kong, the Republic of Korea, the Democratic People’s Republic of Korea, the
People’s Republic of China, Thailand, Indonesia, Malaysia, and Vietnam. In addition, the
royalty agreement was terminated. Finally, all intellectual property rights and trademarks of
the PPT system were agreed to be usable by Rentrak Japan.
Consideration for the above items included a cash payment from Rentrak Japan to the
Company of approximately $5,700,000, forfeiture by Rentrak Japan of any right of return of

the 1999 prepaid royalty of $700,000, and forgiveness by Rentrak Japan of approximately
$600,000 of liabilities due to Rentrak Japan from the Company. Of these amounts,
$6,400,000 was recorded as revenue consistent with the historical treatment of royalty
payments. The remaining $600,000 was recorded as a gain and is included in other income
in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
In April and October 2001, the Company sold all of its 5.6 percent interest in Rentrak
Japan. In conjunction with the above agreements, the Company and Rentrak Japan
entered into stock purchase commitments to purchase stock as described below.
The Company sold 300,000 shares of Rentrak Japan stock to a sister company of Rentrak
Japan on April 2, 2001, and its remaining 180,000 shares of Rentrak Japan stock on
October 2, 2001 to the sister company. Total proceeds from the stock sales approximated
$6,400,000. The resulting gain of $6,400,000 related to the sale of this stock is included in
other income in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. Finally, Rentrak
Japan purchased 17,000 shares of 3PF common stock on April 27, 2001 for $1,000,000.
In return, Rentrak Japan sold 1,004,000 shares of the Company’s common stock back to
the Company on April 2, 2001 for approximately $3,890,500.
Based upon the results of the transactions noted above occurring in the year ended March
31, 2002, the Company had no further obligations to, or ownership in, Rentrak Japan.

(c)

Rentrak UK Limited
In February 1998, the Company entered into a Shareholders Agreement and a PPT
License Agreement with Columbus Holdings Limited and Rentrak UK Limited (Rentrak UK)
to develop the Company’s PPT distribution and information processing business in the
United Kingdom through Rentrak UK. The PPT Agreement remains in force in perpetuity,
unless terminated due to material breach of contract, liquidation of Rentrak UK, or
nondelivery, by the Company to Rentrak UK, of all retailer and studio software, including all
updates. Pursuant to the PPT Agreement, during the term of the PPT Agreement, the
Company will receive a royalty of 1.67% of Rentrak UK’s gross revenues from any and all
sources. Rentrak currently owns 92% of Rentrak UK while Rentrak Japan holds 8%. During
the fiscal 2000 year, Rentrak UK did not generate income or positive cash flow and, as a
result, the Company wrote down assets of $222,000 in that year that were not expected to
generate positive cash flow. During the year ended March 31, 2001, Rentrak UK continued
to generate no income or cash flow. During the year ended March 31, 2002, Rentrak UK
improved its performance producing minimal income and cash flow. Management of the
Company has made changes to decrease the cost of operations, including space and staffing
costs, and it is continuing to closely evaluate the financial performance of operations.
Management is considering various alternatives including selling or closing down Rentrak
UK's operations.

(d)

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its majority
owned subsidiaries, and those subsidiaries in which the Company has a controlling interest
after elimination of all intercompany accounts and transactions. Investments in affiliated
companies owned 20% to 50% are accounted for by the equity method.

(e)

Management Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(f)

Revenue Recognition
The PPT agreements generally provide for an initial order processing fee and continuing
transaction fees based on a percentage of rental revenues earned by the retailer upon
renting the Units to their customers. The Company recognizes order-processing fees as
revenue when the Units are shipped to the retailers and recognizes transaction fees when
the Units are rented to the consumers. Initial order processing fees cover the direct costs of
accessing Units from program suppliers, handling, packaging and shipping of the Units to
the retailer. Once the Units are shipped, the Company has no further obligation to provide
services to the retailer.
Revenues derived from fulfillment activities are recognized when products are shipped
and/or services are provided.
During fiscal 2000, the Company received a $2,500,000 prepayment from a customer in
exchange for $4,000,000 in credit related to a long-term agreement. This prepayment
related to periods subsequent to March 31, 2000 and has therefore been recorded as
deferred revenue on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Deferred revenue of
$379,106 recorded March 31, 2002, will be recognized in future periods as revenues are
earned under the terms of the contract.
Stockholders and former directors, or their families, owned interests in several stores
participating in the PPT program through fiscal 2000. The Company realized revenues from
these stores of approximately $47,000 during fiscal 2000. No revenues were recognized
from these parties in fiscal 2001 or 2002.

(g)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three
months or less at acquisition to be cash equivalents. Included in cash and cash equivalents
is $1,000,000 of restricted cash used as security for the Company’s operating cash
accounts which is held in highly liquid investments. The classification of this cash is
determined based on the expected term of the collateral requirement of the operating cash
account. This restriction was relieved subsequent to March 31, 2002 as part of the
financing arrangement described in note 5.

(h)

Investment Securities
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments
in Debt and Equity Securities (SFAS 115), requires the Company to classify and account
for its security investments as trading securities, securities available for sale or securities
held to maturity depending on the Company’s intent and ability to hold or trade the
securities at time of purchase. Securities available for sale are stated on the balance sheet
at their fair market value with an adjustment to stockholders’ equity reflected in other

comprehensive income (loss) as change in net unrealized gains and losses, net of tax.
Securities held to maturity are stated at amortized cost.
Detail of the proceeds from the sales of available for sale securities and realized gains and
losses on sales of equity securities for the years ended March 31 are as follows:
Proceeds
2002
2001
2000

$

161,513
1,605,555
975,305

Gross gains
33,150
9,570
554,971

Gross losses
(14,970)
(606,694)
(121,105)

When, in management’s opinion, available for sale securities have experienced an other
than temporary decline, the amount of the decline in market value below cost is recorded in
the statement of operations as a loss on investments.
In fiscal 2000, management determined that certain investments had incurred unrealized
losses resulting from other than temporary declines in market value below the cost of the
investments. Unrealized losses from other than temporary declines in market value of
$1,245,157 were recorded in gain (loss) on investments in the March 31, 2000 consolidated
statement of operations. There were no unrealized losses from other than temporary
declines in market value recognized in the March 31, 2002 and 2001 consolidated
statements of operations.
(i)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Credit limits are established through a process of reviewing the financial history and
stability of each customer. The Company regularly evaluates the collectibility of accounts
receivable by monitoring past due balances. If it is determined that a customer may be
unable to meet its financial obligations, a specific reserve is established based on the
amount the Company expects to recover. An additional general reserve is provided based
on aging of accounts receivable and the Company’s historical collection experience. If
circumstances change related to specific customers, overall aging of accounts receivable or
collection experience, the Company’s estimate of the recoverability of accounts receivable
could materially change.

(j)

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is cash or a contract that imposes or conveys a contractual obligation
or right, to deliver or receive, cash or another financial instrument. The estimated fair value
of all material financial instruments approximated their carrying values at March 31, 2002
and 2001.

(k)

Inventory
Inventory consists of videocassettes, digital videodiscs (DVDs), and other home
entertainment products held for sale and is carried at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out
method) or market value.

(l)

Property and Equipment
Depreciation of property and equipment is computed on the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives of three to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over

the lives of the underlying leases or the service lives of the improvements, whichever is
shorter.
(m)

Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (SFAS 109). Under the
liability method specified by SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based on the temporary differences between the financial statement basis and tax basis of
assets and liabilities as measured by the enacted tax rates for the years in which the taxes
are expected to be paid.

(n)

Studio Reserves
The Company has entered into guarantee contracts with certain program suppliers
providing titles for distribution under the PPT system. These contracts guarantee the
suppliers minimum payments. The Company, using historical experience and year to date
rental experience for each title, estimates the projected revenue to be generated under
each guarantee. The Company establishes reserves for titles that are projected to
experience a shortage under the provisions of the guarantee. The Company continually
reviews these factors and makes adjustments to the reserves as needed.

(o)

Foreign Currency Translation
Adjustments from translating foreign functional currency financial statements into U.S.
dollars are included in the Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment in the consolidated
statement of stockholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange
rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a currency other than the local currency
are included in results of operations.

(p)

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings
per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average shares of common
stock outstanding plus common equivalent shares arising from dilutive stock options.
The weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents
and net income (loss) used to compute basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the
years ended March 31 were calculated as follows:

2002

Basic

Diluted

11,985,023

11,985,023

10,477,334

10,477,334

197,459

—

—

—

281,787

10,415,314

10,612,773

11,985,023

11,985,023

10,477,334

10,759,121

8,994,031

8,994,031

(7,577,368)

(7,577,368)

1,051,304

1,051,304

—

—

—

—

2,373,502

2,373,502

$

8,994,031

8,994,031

(7,577,368)

(7,577,368)

3,424,806

3,424,806

$

0.86

0.85

(0.63)

(0.63)

0.10

0.10

—

—

—

—

0.23

0.22

0.86

0.85

(0.63)

(0.63)

0.33

0.32

Weighted average
number of shares
of common stock
outstanding and
common stock
equivalents

Net income
(loss)
Earnings (loss) per
share:
Continuing
operations
Discontinued
operations
Earnings (loss)
per common
share

$

Diluted

10,415,314

10,415,314

—

$

Basic

2000
Diluted

Weighted average
number of shares of
common stock
outstanding
Dilutive effect of stock
options

Net income (loss):
Continuing
operations
Discontinued
operations

2001

Basic

Options and warrants to purchase approximately 2,300,000 and 4,400,000 shares of
common stock were outstanding during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 and 2000,
respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the exercise
price of the options and warrants were greater than the average market price of the
common shares. Options and warrants to purchase 3,200,000 shares for the year ended
March 31, 2001, were outstanding but were not included in the computation of diluted
EPS because their effect would be antidilutive due to a loss for the period.
(q)

Advertising Expense
Advertising expense, net of advertising reimbursements, totaled approximately $216,683,
$627,662 and $952,000 for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively.

(r)

Statements of Cash Flows
The Company had the following non-cash transactions for the fiscal years ended March 31:

Cash paid (received) for:
Interest
Income taxes, net of refunds
Noncash financing and investing
activities:
Reclassification of accounts
receivable to other assets
and other investments
Issuance of warrants
Tax benefit from stock
option exercises
Receipt of note receivable in
litigation settlement
(note 10)
Receipt of common stock in
litigation settlement
(note 10)
Change in unrealized gain
(loss) on investment
securities, net of tax
Receipt (forgiveness) of
note receivable in
exchange for stock
Exchange of investment in
Rentrak Japan for Rentrak
common stock
(s)

$

2002

2001

27,329
125,380

253,211
111,701

656,723
(1,645,085)

—
—

—
—

1,023,794
(544,139)

—

(27,699)

(261,819)

2000

—

—

4,000,000

—

—

1,944,375

49,572

215,112

(7,350,621)

3,890,500

(402,431)

7,728,186

—

---

---

Comprehensive Income
In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income (SFAS 130).
The statement establishes presentation and disclosure requirements for reporting
comprehensive income. Comprehensive income includes charges or credits to equity that
are not the result of transactions with shareholders. Components of the Company’s
comprehensive income (loss) which consist of the change in unrealized gain (loss) on
investment securities (net of tax), net of the reclassification adjustment for gains (losses)
included in net income (loss), and foreign currency translation adjustments as of March 31
are as follows:

2002
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Unrealized gains (losses) on
securities:
Holding gains (losses)
arising during the period,
net of tax
Less reclassification
adjustment for gains
(losses) included in net
income, net of tax

$

Change in unrealized
gain (loss) on
investment
securities, net of tax
Other Comprehensive Income
(Loss)

(t)

$

180,453

2001

2000
—

—

60,844

(12,470)

(534,988)

11,272

(227,582)

(132,557)

49,572

215,112

(402,431)

230,025

215,112

(402,431)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment, and purchased intangibles
subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an
impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of
the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and depreciation ceases.

(u)

New Accounting Standards
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 141,
“Business Combinations,” effective July 1, 2001, and SFAS 141 requires use of the
purchase method of accounting for acquisitions. To date, the adoption of SFAS 141 has not
had a material impact on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
effective for the Company on April 1, 2002. SFAS 142 specifies that goodwill and some
intangible assets will no longer be amortized but instead will be subject to periodic
impairment testing. The Company expects that adoption of SFAS 142 will not have a
material impact on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,”
which will be effective for the Company on April 1, 2002. SFAS 143 addresses the financial
accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived

assets and the associated asset retirement costs. The Company expects that adoption of
SFAS 143 will not have a material impact on the Company's financial condition or results
of operations.
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets,” which supersedes SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of LongLived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.”
SFAS 144 also supersedes the accounting and reporting provisions of APB No. 30,
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, for the disposal of a segment
of a business. The effective date for implementation of SFAS 144 is for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2001; however, early adoption is permitted. SFAS 144
retains many of the fundamental provisions of SFAS 121, but resolves certain
implementation issues. The Company expects that the adoption of SFAS 144 will not have
a material impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.
In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and
64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” effective for the
Company on April 1, 2003. SFAS 145 rescinds SFAS 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishment of Debt”, and an amendment of that Statement, SFAS 64, “Extinguishments
of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements.” SFAS 145 also rescinds SFAS 44,
“Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers.” SFAS 145 amends SFAS 13,
“Accounting for Leases,” to eliminate an inconsistency between the required accounting for
sale-leaseback transactions and the required accounting for certain lease modifications that
have economic effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. SFAS 145 also
amends other existing authoritative pronouncements to make various technical corrections,
clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed conditions. The Company
expects that the adoption of SFAS 145 will not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial condition or results of operations.
(v)

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current
year presentation.

(2)

Investment Securities
The carrying value and estimated fair value of marketable securities at March 31 were as follows:
Carrying
value
2002:
Available for sale –
noncurrent:
Corporate
securities
2001:
Available for sale –
noncurrent:
Corporate
securities

$

Unrealized
gross gain

—

—

143,333

13

Unrealized
gross loss

Fair value

—

—

(79,969)

63,353

(3)

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, at cost, consists of:
March 31
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Leasehold improvements

$

Less accumulated depreciation
$

2002

2001

8,670,052
2,183,128
1,914,045

8,532,210
1,875,159
2,092,844

12,767,343

12,500,213

(8,859,594)

(8,060,440)

3,907,631

4,439,773

During 2001, management assessed the operations of 3PF and made the decision to forgo the
renewal of a lease of one of its three warehouses. In conjunction with this decision, the assets
associated with this building including racking and storage equipment were written down to fair
market value, as determined by a third party. The total loss on the write-down of these assets
approximated $425,000. This amount is included in cost of sales in the accompanying statement
of operations.
(4)

Retailer Financing Program
In 1992, the Company established a retailer financing program whereby, on a selective basis, it
provided financing to Participating Retailers that the Company believed had potential for
substantial growth in the industry. In connection with these financings, the Company typically
made a loan and/or equity investment in the Participating Retailer. In some cases, the Company
obtained a warrant to purchase stock in the Participating Retailer. As part of such financings, the
Participating Retailer typically agreed to cause all of its current and future retail locations to
participate in the PPT System for a designated period of time (usually 5-20 years). These
financings are speculative in nature and involve a high degree of risk and no assurance of a
satisfactory return on investment can be given.
During fiscal 2001, the Company discontinued new financings under this retailer financing
program. Write-offs of assets associated with this program during fiscal 2001 were $6,100,000,
including $4,400,000 due to the Company from Video Update, Inc. The Company seeks to
enforce agreements entered into in connection with this program in accordance with their terms
to the extent practicable.
The loans are reviewed for impairment in accordance with FASB Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan (SFAS 114). A
valuation allowance has been established for the amount by which the recorded investment in
the loan exceeds the measure of the impaired loan. As the financings are made, and periodically
throughout the terms of the agreements, the Company assesses the recoverability of the
amounts based on the financial position of each retailer. The amounts the Company could
ultimately receive could differ materially in the near-term from the amounts assumed in
establishing the reserves.

As of March 31, 2002 and 2001 the Company had invested or loaned approximately $6,600,000
under the program and had provided reserves of approximately $6,600,000. These balances are
included in other assets.
The activity in the total reserves for the retailer financing program is as follows for the fiscal years
ended March 31:

(5)

2002

2001

Beginning balance
Additions to reserve
Write-offs
Recoveries

$

6,598,514
50,000
—
(72,760)

5,684,183
925,216
—
(10,885)

Ending balance

$

6,575,754

6,598,514

Line of Credit
In May 2000 the Company obtained a line of credit with a lender in an amount not to exceed the
lesser of (a) $12 million or (b) the sum of 85% of the net amount of eligible accounts receivable.
Interest under the line is payable monthly at the bank’s prime rate plus ¼ percent (5.0 percent at
March 31, 2002). The line is secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets. The terms of
the credit agreement include financial covenants requiring: (1) $15 million of tangible net worth to
be maintained at all times; (2) a consolidated net profit to be achieved each fiscal year equal to
or exceeding $1.00, and (3) $5 million of working capital to be maintained at all times. The
agreement also restricts the amount of loans and indebtedness and limits the payment of
dividends on the Company’s stock, among other restrictions. Based upon the financial results
reported as of March 31, 2002 and the twelve month period then ended, the Company was in
compliance with the three financial covenants at March 31, 2002. At March 31, 2002, the
Company had no outstanding borrowings under this agreement.
On May 26, 2002, the Company cancelled its line of credit described above. On May 30, 2002,
the Company entered into an agreement for a new secured revolving line of credit. The line of
credit carries a maximum limit of $4,500,000 and expires in May 2003. The Company has the
choice of either the bank’s prime interest rate or LIBOR +2%. The line is secured by substantially
all of the Company’s assets. The terms of the credit agreement include financial covenants
requiring: (1) $16 million of tangible net worth to be maintained at all times; (2) a consolidated net
profit to be achieved each fiscal quarter beginning with the quarter ending September 30, 2002 of
a minimum of $1.00; (3) minimum year to date profit of $1.00 (excluding certain exempted
expenses) beginning with the quarter ending September 30, 2002; and (4) achievement of
specific current and leverage financial ratios. The Company anticipates that it will be in
compliance with these covenants throughout the term of the agreement.

(6)

Related Party Note Payable
During fiscal 2000, the Company’s subsidiary, Blowout Video Holding Company, entered into a
$3,000,000 line of credit with a former director of the Company. The line was to expire in
August 2002 and accrued interest at prime plus 1½%. The line was secured by substantially all
the assets of BlowOut Video Holding Company. This agreement was cancelled by the Company
in fiscal 2001.

(7)

Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes is as follows for the fiscal years ended March 31:
2002
Current tax (benefit) provision:
Federal
State

$

Deferred tax provision (benefit)
Income tax provision (benefit)

$

2001

2000

309,585
31,000

—
—

—
125,192

340,585

—

125,192

5,171,886

(4,514,575)

325,367

5,512,471

(4,514,575)

450,559

The reported provision (benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations differs from the
amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate of 34% to income before
provision (benefit) for income taxes as follows for the fiscal years ended March 31:

Provision (benefit) computed at
statutory rates
State taxes, net of federal benefit
Amortization of warrants
Recognition of net operating loss
carryforward
Other

$

2002

2001

4,932,211
580,261
22,800

(4,111,261)
(468,098)
140,027

—
(22,801)
$

5,512,471

—
(75,243)
(4,514,575)

2000
510,633
59,474
193,667
(131,507)
(181,708)
450,559

Deferred tax assets and (liabilities) from continuing operations are comprised of the following
components at March 31, 2002 and 2001:
2002
Deferred tax assets:
Current:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Program supplier reserves
Foreign tax credit
Net operating loss carryforward
Unrealized loss on investments
Capital loss carry forward
Deferred revenue
Other

$

Total current deferred tax assets
Noncurrent:
Depreciation
Retailer financing program reserve
Foreign tax credit
Deferred revenue
Other
Total noncurrent deferred tax assets
Total deferred tax assets

$

2001

222,643
510,842
—
960,244
119,015
—
144,060
338,763

449,138
520,614
500,000
4,616,162
119,015
279,407
473,453
361,477

2,295,567

7,319,266

204,996
663,040
—
—
134,846

445,631
671,689
1,000,000
144,060
158,254

1,002,882

2,419,634

3,298,449

9,738,900

As of March 31, 2002, the Company has estimated NOL carryforwards for federal income tax
return purposes of approximately $2,500,000, which expire in 2021. Although realization of the
deferred tax assets is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that the
Company will ultimately realize all of its deferred tax assets.
(8)

Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Options and Warrants
Effective March 31, 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Non-Officer Employee Stock Option
Plan. The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of options under the
plan may not exceed 800,000. In August 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Equity
Participation Plan. The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
options under the plan shall not exceed 2,075,000, including an increase of 475,000 shares
approved by the Board in May 2002, subject to shareholder approval. The plans are administered
by the Compensation Committee of the Board which determines the terms and conditions of
options issued under the plans. Options granted to date under the plans are exercisable over one
to five years and expire ten years after date of grant. As of March 31, 2002, the Company had
457,092 and 440,938 options available to be granted under the 1997 Non-Officer Employee
Stock Option Plan and 1997 Equity Participation Plan, respectively.

The Company has elected to account for its stock-based compensation plans in accordance with
APB 25, under which no compensation expense has been recognized. The Company has
computed for pro forma disclosure purposes the value of all options granted during fiscal years
2002, 2001, and 2000, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model as prescribed by SFAS 123
and the following assumptions:
2002
Risk-free interest rate
Expected dividend yield
Expected lives
Expected volatility

4.08- 5.47%
0%
5 - 10 years
81.28%

2001
4.77 - 6.82%
0%
5 - 10 years
78.21%

2000
5.37 - 6.91%
0%
5 - 10 years
72.20%

Adjustments were made for options forfeited prior to vesting. Had compensation expense for
these plans been determined in accordance with SFAS 123, the Company’s net income (loss)
and earnings (loss) per common share reflected on the March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000
consolidated statements of operations would have been the following unaudited pro forma
amounts:
2002

2001

2000

8,994,031
8,432,485

(7,577,368)
(8,156,972)

3,424,806
2,293,758

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
As reported
Pro forma

0.86
0.81

(0.63)
(0.68)

0.33
0.22

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
As reported
Pro forma

0.85
0.79

(0.63)
(0.68)

0.32
0.21

Net income (loss):
As reported
Pro forma

$

The table below summarizes the plans’ activity:
Options outstanding
Weighted
average
exercise
Number of
price
shares
Balance at March 31, 1999
Granted:
Option price = fair market value
Option price > fair market value
Option price < fair market value
Issued
Canceled
Balance at March 31, 2000
Granted:
Option price = fair market value
Option price > fair market value
Issued
Canceled
Balance at March 31, 2001
Granted:
Option price = fair market value
Issued
Canceled
Balance at March 31, 2002

3,446,106

$

607,837
15,000
12,500
(74,613)
(147,128)

4.73
3.97
7.38
2.81
3.08
5.75

3,859,702

4.60

393,575
5,420
(1,721,060)
(872,948)

3.80
4.61
4.67
5.12

1,664,689

4.07

400,500
(227,812)
(211,918)
1,625,459

3.29
3.22
4.84
$

3.97

Using the Black Scholes methodology, the total value of options granted during fiscal years 2002,
2001, and 2000 was approximately $965,000, $1,524,000, and $2,560,000, respectively, which
would be amortized on a pro forma basis over the vesting period of the option. The weighted
average fair value of options granted during the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000
was $3.29, $3.82, and $4.03, respectively. Options to purchase 978,380, 1,026,899, and
2,494,190 shares of common stock were exercisable at March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively. These exercisable options had weighted average exercise prices of $4.31, $4.39,
and $4.70 at March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at March 31, 2002:
Options outstanding
Range of
exercise
prices

$ 1.00 – 2.59
2.60 – 6.49
6.50 – 9.50

Outstanding
as of
March 31,
2002

40,000
1,575,459
10,000
1,625,459

Weighted
average
remaining
contractual
life

8.8
6.0
7.3

Options exercisable
Weighted
average
exercise
price

$

2.188
3.979
9.500

Exercisable
as of
March 31,
2002

5,000
963,380
10,000

Weighted
average
exercise
price

$

2.189
4.335
9.50

978,380

The Company issued warrants in 1995 and 1998 which were valued by an outside valuation firm
using standard warrant valuation models. The value of the warrants of $4,133,977 was recorded
in the equity section and is being amortized over the associated periods to be benefited by each
warrant. In fiscal 2002, 2001, and 2000, expense associated with these warrants was
approximately $60,000, $368,000, and $510,000, respectively. As of March 31, 2002, warrants to
purchase 1,234,562 shares of common stock were outstanding related to the above issuances.
In May 1995, the board of directors approved a shareholders’ rights plan designed to ensure that
all of the Company’s shareholders receive fair and equal treatment in the event of certain
proposals to acquire control of the Company. Under the rights plan, each shareholder received a
dividend of one right for each share of the Company’s outstanding common stock, entitling the
holders to purchase one additional share of the Company’s common stock. The rights become
exercisable after any person or group acquires 15% or more of the Company’s outstanding
common stock, or announces a tender offer which would result in the offeror becoming the
beneficial owners of 15% or more of the Company’s outstanding stock. Prior to the time that a
person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s outstanding
stock, the board of directors, at their discretion, may waive this provision with respect to any
transaction or may terminate the rights plan.
Executive Loan Program
In June 2000, the board of directors approved an offer to make loans available to those officers
of the Company who were under an employment contract for the purpose of allowing them to
exercise their vested, unexercised “out of the money” employee stock options. The purpose of
this program was to enable executives to exercise certain of their options and thereby hold
shares resulting from the exercise of such options in advance of a possible spin-off or split-up of
3PF, and to enhance the Company’s efforts to retain its key employees. The loans under this
program bear interest at the federal funds rate in effect on the date of the loan and interest is
payable annually. The principal amount of the loan is due on the earliest to occur of: (1) one year
prior to the expiration of the term of the borrower’s current employment agreement with the
Company, (2) one year after the borrower leaves the Company’s employment unless such
departure follows a “change of control” (as defined in the loan agreements), (3) five years from
the date of the loan, or (4) one year from the date of the borrower’s death. The loans are secured
by the stock purchased upon the exercise of the options. The loans are without recourse (except
as to the stock securing the loans) as to principal and are with full recourse against the borrower
as to interest. The offer to make these loans expired September 30, 2000. Prior to September 30,

2000, several employees accepted this offer and obtained loans from the Company. Because the
loan proceeds were immediately used to pay the exercise price of the options to the Company,
there was no net outflow of cash from the Company in connection with these loans.
During 2001, a former officer of the Company, who was loaned, on June 16, 2000, $6,629,386 to
purchase 1,362,008 shares of stock upon exercise of his employee stock options and, during the
quarter ended September 30, 2000, was loaned $721,235 to purchase 133,742 shares of stock
upon exercise of his employee stock options, terminated his agreements with the Company.
Accordingly, the common stock and related notes receivable totaling $7,350,621 were reversed
in a non-cash transaction.

(9)

Commitments
Leases
The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases expiring at various
dates through 2009. Approximate rental payments over the term of the leases exceeding one
year are as follows:
Year ending March 31:
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008 and thereafter

$

3,341,280
3,241,871
3,274,738
3,109,122
2,915,415
4,164,892

$

20,047,318

The leases provide for payment of taxes, insurance, and maintenance by the Company. The
Company also rents vehicles and equipment on a short-term basis. Rent expense under
operating leases was approximately $3,581,000, $2,954,000, and $2,335,000 for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
Guarantees and Advances
The Company has entered into several guarantee contracts with program suppliers providing
titles for distribution under the PPT system. In general, these contracts guarantee the suppliers
minimum payments. In some cases these guarantees are paid in advance. Any advance
payments made by the Company that will be realized within the current year are included in
advances to program suppliers. The long-term portion is included in other assets. Both the
current and long-term portion are amortized to cost of sales as revenues are generated from the
related cassettes.
The Company, using empirical data, estimates the projected revenue stream to be generated
under these guarantee arrangements and accrues for projected payments or reduces the
carrying amount of advances to program suppliers for any guarantee that it estimates will not be
fully recovered through future revenues. As of March 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company has
reserved approximately $2,200,000 and $2,400,000, respectively, for potential payments under
such guarantee arrangements.

On March 22, 1999, BlowOut filed for Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code in the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware. At that same time BlowOut filed a motion to
sell substantially all the assets of BlowOut. BlowOut is not related to the Company’s wholly
owned subsidiary BlowOut Video, Inc. The sale, to a third party video retailer, was approved on
May 10, 1999 and closed on May 17, 1999. The Company was the principal creditor of BlowOut.
In 1996, the Company had agreed to guarantee up to $7 million of indebtedness of BlowOut
(Guarantee). Pursuant to the terms of the Guarantee, the Company agreed to guarantee any
amounts outstanding under BlowOut’s credit facility. As the sale of the BlowOut assets were not
sufficient to cover the amounts due under this facility, the Company, pursuant to the guarantee,
has agreed to a payment plan to fulfill BlowOut’s obligation under its credit facility. The
payments, as made, were recorded as a reduction of “net current liabilities of discontinued
operations” on the accompanying balance sheet. As of March 31, 2002, all amounts related to
this obligation had been paid.
Other
In June 2000, the Company entered into an agreement with one of its customers to modify an
existing contract. Under terms of the agreement the customer made a payment to the Company
in the amount of $2,500,000 and also increased its obligation to purchase PPT product.
Subsequent to the signing of the agreement, the customer took the position that it was entitled to
a refund of the payment, as additional agreements were not finalized as expected. On March 31,
2001, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the customer whereby $1,600,000
of the $2,500,000 payment was determined to be consideration for modification of the
aforementioned existing contract, while the remaining $900,000 was held by the Company as
credit to be applied to future receivables generated by the customer. The $900,000 credit is to be
allocated towards future receivables at the rate of $75,000 per quarter, beginning with the quarter
ended March 31, 2001. The long-term portion of this credit has been included in other long-term
liabilities on the accompanying balance sheet.
(10)

Contingencies
On November 15, 2000, 3PF filed a proceeding with the American Arbitration Association against
Reel.com, Inc., a division of Hollywood Entertainment Corporation ("Hollywood"), for breach of a
servicing, warehousing, and distribution agreement, and against Hollywood in connection with its
guarantee of the obligations of Reel.com, Inc., under the agreement. 3PF sought damages in
excess of $3,300,000, together with prejudgment interest and attorney fees. On August 6, 2001,
Hollywood filed a proceeding with the American Arbitration Association against the Company for
the alleged breach of a settlement agreement among the Company, Hollywood, and two
individuals dated January 23, 2000, relating to the Company's obligation to provide Hollywood
with documents and data with regard to Hollywood's obligation to indemnify the Company against
claims by a movie studio. Hollywood sought damages in the amount of $2,000,000. On March
13, 2002, an arbitrator awarded damages to the Company of $1,600,000 related to the
November 15, 2000 claim. This amount is reflected as a gain and is included in other income in
the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. In April 2002, in a confidential
settlement agreement, Hollywood agreed to pay an additional $325,000 to the Company to
resolve all outstanding issues between the two parties.
On February 20, 2001, the Company filed a complaint against Ron Berger, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and a director of Rentrak until September 2000, in the Circuit Court of the State
of Oregon for the County of Multnomah (No. 0102-01814), seeking cancellation of shares of
Rentrak common stock acquired by Mr. Berger through an option loan program offered to the
Company's officers in June 2000 and damages for the conversion of an automobile and

computer equipment plus an over-advance payment of business expenses less setoffs. On or
about March 29, 2001, Mr. Berger filed a counterclaim seeking damages of approximately $1.76
million plus attorney fees from the Company for conversion of Mr. Berger's director's fees and
dividends from Rentrak Japan, breach of an agreement to compensate Mr. Berger for
cancellation of options to purchase Company stock, failure to pay accumulated wages and
compensation, breach of an agreement to provide options to purchase stock in 3PF, and failure
to provide certain insurance benefits. On June 15, 2001, the Company filed an amended
complaint alleging tort claims arising out of Mr. Berger's activities as an officer and director of the
Company involving Video City, Inc., and seeking damages of not less than $6,000,000. Effective
May 6, 2002, the parties resolved the litigation pursuant to a confidential settlement agreement
pursuant to which the parties agreed to dismiss their respective lawsuits and to seek nothing
further from the other in litigation.
The Company is also a party to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of
its business. In the opinion of management, the amount of any ultimate liability with respect to
these actions is not expected to materially affect the financial position or results of operations of
the Company.
(11)

Employee Benefit Plans
On January 1, 1991, the Company established an employee benefit plan (the 401(k) Plan)
pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code for certain qualified employees.
Contributions made to the 401(k) Plan are based on percentages of employees’ salaries. The
total amount of the Company’s contribution is at the discretion of the board of directors.
Contributions under the 401(k) Plan for the years ended March 31, 2001 and 2000 were
approximately $82,000 and $77,000, respectively. As of March 31, 2002, the board of directors
had not made a decision regarding contributions for the year ended March 31, 2002.
The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the Plan). The board of directors has
reserved 200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for issuance under the Plan, of which
143,773 shares remain authorized and available for sale to employees. All employees meeting
certain eligibility criteria may be granted the opportunity to purchase common stock, under
certain limitations, at 85% of market value. Payment is made through payroll deductions.
Under the Plan, employees purchased 3,079 shares for aggregate proceeds of $11,005, 4,000
shares for aggregate proceeds of $13,561, and 3,257 shares for aggregate proceeds of $14,370,
in fiscal 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
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Business Segments, Significant Suppliers, and Major Customer
In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information, (SFAS 131). SFAS 131 requires the Company to report certain information about
operating segments. The Company classifies its services in three segments, PPT, 3PF.COM,
and Other. Other services include operations of BlowOut Video, a video retailer, website
services, and amounts received pursuant to royalty agreements.
Business Segments

Net sales (1):
PPT
3PF.COM (2)
Other

Income (loss) from operations:
PPT
3PF.COM (2)
Other

Identifiable assets (1):
PPT
3PF.COM
Other

2002

2001

2000

73,715,459
17,521,877
13,775,151

85,735,385
23,389,443
11,390,382

96,390,304
11,648,725
9,412,898

$ 105,012,487

120,515,210

117,451,927

$

$

6,225,420
(3,858,411)
4,244,230

(6,694,623)
(3,788,576)
539,929

1,892,205
(1,131,354)
2,260,390

$

6,611,239

(9,943,270)

3,021,241

$

42,186,157
5,831,188
3,909,735

38,202,038
8,425,876
5,566,431

44,571,673
2,703,360
6,195,923

$

51,927,080

52,194,345

53,470,956

(1)

Total amounts differ from those reported on the consolidated financial statements as
intercompany transactions and investments in subsidiaries are not eliminated for segment
reporting purposes.

(2)

3PF.COM’s revenues related to the shipment of cassettes to Rentrak’s PPT Customers
was $2,200,000, $3,300,000, and $3,300,000 for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001,
and 2000, respectively.

The Company has one program supplier that supplied product that generated 17%, a second
that generated 15%, and a third that generated 13% of the Company’s revenues for the year
ended March 31, 2002. The Company has one program supplier that supplied product that
generated 18%, a second that generated 15%, and a third that generated 13% of the Company’s
revenues for the year ended March 31, 2001. The Company has one program supplier that
supplied product that generated 25%, a second that generated 19%, and a third that generated
13% of the Company’s revenues for the year ended March 31, 2000. There were no other
program suppliers who provided product accounting for more than 10% of sales for the years
ended March 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000.

The Company currently receives a significant amount of product from three program suppliers.
Although management does not believe that these relationships will be terminated in the near
term, a loss of one of these suppliers could have an adverse affect on operating results.
No customer accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s revenue in fiscal 2002, 2001, or
2000.
(13)

Discontinued Operations
On November 26, 1996, the Company made a distribution to its shareholders of 1,457,343
shares of common stock (the BlowOut Common Stock) of BlowOut. BlowOut is not related to the
Company’s wholly owned subsidiary BlowOut Video, Inc. During the year ended March 31, 2000,
the Company recorded a gain on the disposal of discontinued operations of $1,900,000 related to
BlowOut, as the liability related to BlowOut contingencies was less than estimated. The Company
also reduced the valuation allowance that was recorded against the deferred tax asset related to
liabilities of discontinued operations. This reduction of approximately $500,000 in the valuation
allowance was recorded as an income tax benefit from discontinued operations in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations. There was no remaining liability related to
discontinued operations at March 31, 2002.

(14)

RENTRAK CORPORATION
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA
FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED JUNE 30, 2000 TO MARCH 31, 2002

JUNE 30,
2001 (1)

SEPTEMBER 30,
2001

DECEMBER 31,
2001 (2)

MARCH 31,
2002 (3)

$28,973,887

$23,736,933

$26,432,286

$23,471,041

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

2,277,726

598,251

1,232,201

2,503,061

NET INCOME

4,694,913

433,785

2,238,688

1,626,645

$0.42
$0.42

$0.04
$0.04

$0.23
$0.23

$0.17
$0.16

JUNE 30,
2000

SEPTEMBER 30,
2000 (4)

DECEMBER 31,
2000 (5)

MARCH 31,
2001 (6)

$29,479,624

$24,890,555

$32,784,629

$30,732,147

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

407,795

(15,248,758)

519,229

4,378,464

NET INCOME (LOSS)

249,999

(9,568,993)

229,510

1,512,116

$0.02

($0.77)

$0.02

$0.12

QUARTER ENDED:
REVENUE

EARNINGS PER SHARE:
BASIC
DILUTED

QUARTER ENDED:
REVENUE

EARNINGS PER SHARE:
BASIC AND DILUTED

(1) The June 30, 2001 quarter included results from the Rentrak Japan restructuring agreement.
The agreement resulted in the recognition of $6.4 million in royalty revenue and a $5.6 million
gain in other income during the quarter.
(2) The December 31, 2001 quarter included recovery of a specific allowance in the amount of $0.9
million, established in the June 30, 2001 quarter, for doubtful accounts related to a customer of
the Company’s subsidiary 3PF.Com, Inc. The quarter also included other income of $2.4 million
related to the Rentrak Japan restructuring.
(3) The March 31, 2002 quarter included recognition of a $1.6 million gain from a litigation
settlement with a prior customer, as well as recovery in the amount of $0.7 million of a specific
allowance, established in the December 31, 2000 quarter, for doubtful accounts related to a
customer of the Company’s subsidiary 3PF.Com, Inc.
(4) The September 30, 2000 quarter included significant charges primarily related to accounts
receivable write-offs, write-off of investments, costs associated with a proxy contest, and a
severance payment to the Company’s former chairman and chief executive officer.
(5) The December 31, 2000 quarter included a specific allowance for doubtful accounts in the
amount of $0.9 million related to a customer of the Company’s subsidiary 3PF.Com, Inc.
(6) The March 31, 2001 quarter included recognition of $1.6 million in revenue from a customer in
exchange for cancellation of certain of the Company’s rights.

RENTRAK CORPORATION
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Schedule II

Year Ended:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
March 31, 2000
March 31, 2001
March 31, 2002
Advances to program suppliers reserve
March 31, 2000
March 31, 2001
March 31, 2002
Other Current AssetsRetailer Financing Program reserve
March 31, 2000
March 31, 2001
March 31, 2002
Other AssetsRetailer Financing Program reserve
March 31, 2000
March 31, 2001
March 31, 2002

Balance at
Charged to
Beginning of Write Off and
Other
Period
Expenses
Accounts

$

Recoveries
(Deductions)

Balance at
End of
Period

355,241
836,945
2,090,075

6,341,030
7,758,211
(1,546,300)

-

(5,859,326)
(6,505,081)
542,368

836,945
2,090,075
1,086,143

$ 1,165,160
1,276,078
1,370,037

110,918
93,959
-

-

(25,717)

1,276,078
1,370,037
1,344,320

$

343,500
-

994,935
494,935
838,435

$ 8,580,753
5,189,248
5,760,079

(500,000)
-

1

1,245,157 (4,615,665)
581,715
50,000
-

2

1 - Reclassified from Other Current Assets to Other Assets.
2 - Eliminated against Other Assets.

-

(20,997)
(10,884)
(72,760)

494,935
838,435
838,435

5,189,248
5,760,079
5,737,319

ITEM 9.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On May 9, 2002, the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors approved the dismissal of
our independent public accountants, Arthur Andersen LLP. Arthur Andersen LLP’s reports
on our financial statements for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2001 and 2000 did not
contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as to
uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles. During fiscal years ended March 31,
2001 and 2000, and during the subsequent interim periods through the date of dismissal,
May 9, 2002, there have not been any disagreements between us and Arthur Andersen
LLP on any matters of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or
auditing scope or procedure, or any reportable events as defined under Item 304(a)(1)(v) of
Regulation S-K promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Also, on May 9, 2002, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee of our Board
of Directors, we engage the firm of KPMG LLP to be our independent public accountants.
We did not consult KPMG LLP at any time prior to May 9, 2002, with respect to the
application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or
proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on our financial statements, or
concerning any disagreement or reportable event with Arthur Andersen LLP.
We have been unable to obtain the consent of Arthur Andersen LLP, our former
independent public accountants, as to the incorporation by reference of their report for our
fiscal years ended March 31, 2001 and March 31, 2000, into our previously filed registration
statements under the Securities Act of 1933, and we have not filed that consent with the
Annual Report on Form 10-K in reliance upon Rule 437a of the Securities Act of 1933.
Because we have not been able to obtain Arthur Andersen LLP’s consent, you may not be
able to recover against Arthur Andersen LLP under Section 11 of the Securities Act for any
untrue statements of a material fact contained in our financial statements audited by Arthur
Andersen LLP or any omission to state a material fact required to be stated therein.
PART III
ITEM 10.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, the information called for by this item 10
is incorporated by reference from the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. See
"Election of Directors", "Executive Officers" and “Compliance with Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.”
ITEM 11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, the information called for by this item 11
is incorporated by reference from the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. See
"Executive Compensation.”

ITEM 12.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, the information called for by this item 12
is incorporated by reference from the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. See
"Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management".
ITEM 13.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, the information called for by this item 13
is incorporated by reference from the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. See
"Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation" and "Certain Relationships
and Transactions".

PART IV
ITEM 14.

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON
FORM 8-K

(a)(1) Financial Statements
The following documents are filed as part of the Report:
Consolidated Financial Statements: The Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company are included in Item 8 of this Report as
follows:
Independent Auditor’s Report
Report of Independent Public Accountants
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2002
and 2001
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years
Ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
for the Years Ended March 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules
Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules: The following
consolidated financial statement schedule has been included in Item
8 of this Report:
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Schedules not included have been omitted because they are not applicable
or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes
thereto.
(a)(3) Exhibits: The exhibits required to be filed pursuant to Item 601 of Regulation
S-K are set forth in the Exhibit Index.
(b)

Form 8-K Reports. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company
filed no reports on Form 8-K.

(c) Exhibits (See Exhibit Index)
1.

A shareholder may obtain a copy of any exhibit included in this Report upon
payment of a fee to cover the reasonable expenses of furnishing such exhibits by
written request to Rick Nida, Vice President Investor Relations, Rentrak
Corporation, PO Box 18888, Portland, Oregon 97218.

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
RENTRAK CORPORATION
By

/S/ F. Kim Cox
F. Kim Cox, President

Date June 28, 2002
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and the dates indicated.
Principal Executive Officer and Director:
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Paul A. Rosenbaum, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Director
Principal Financial Officer:
By /S/ Mark L. Thoenes
Mark L. Thoenes, Chief Financial Officer

June 28, 2002

June 28, 2002

Majority of Directors:
*By /S/ Cecil D. Andrus
Cecil D. Andrus, Director

June 28, 2002

*By /S/ George H. Kuper
George H. Kuper, Director

June 28, 2002

*By /S/ Joon S. Moon
Joon S. Moon, Director

June 28, 2002

*By /S/ James G. Petcoff
James G. Petcoff, Director

June 28, 2002

*By /S/ Stanford Stoddard
Stanford Stoddard, Director

June 28, 2002

*By /S/ Mark L. Thoenes
Mark L. Thoenes, Attorney-in-Fact

June 28, 2002

EXHIBIT INDEX
The following exhibits are filed herewith or, if followed by a number in parentheses, are
incorporated herein by reference from the corresponding exhibit filed in the report or registration
statement identified in the footnotes following this index:
Exhibit
Number

Exhibit

2

Agreement Concerning Changes to Business Cooperation Agreement
(Framework) between Rentrak Japan Co., Ltd. and Rentrak Corporation. (1)

3.1

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation and amendments thereto. (2)

3.2

1995 Restated Bylaws, as amended to date. (3)

10.1*

1986 Second Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan and Forms of Stock
Option Agreements. (4)

10.2*

Amendment to 1986 Second Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan dated
May 19, 2000. (5)

10.3

Guarantee Agreement dated as of June 26, 1996, between Rentrak Corporation
and BlowOut Entertainment, Inc. (6)

10.4*

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Marty Graham dated
May 17, 1997. (7)

10.5*

Addendum to Employment Agreement with Marty Graham dated June 8, 2000.
(8)

10.6*

Amendment to Employment Agreement with Marty Graham dated September 1,
2000. (9)

10.7*

Employment Agreement with Michael Lightbourne dated July 10, 1997. (10)

10.8*

Employment Agreement with Christopher Roberts dated October 27, 1997. (11)

10.9*

Addendum to Employment Agreement with Christopher Roberts dated June 8,
2000. (12)

10.10*

The 1997 Equity Participation Plan of Rentrak Corporation, as amended.

10.11*

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under 1997 Equity Participation
Plan. (13)

10.12*

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under 1997 Equity Participation
Plan. (14)

10.13*

Employment Agreement with F. Kim Cox dated April 1, 1998. (15)

Exhibit
Number

Exhibit

10.14*

Promissory Note of Michael Lightbourne dated August 30, 2000. (16)

10.15*

Loan Agreement with Michael Lightbourne dated August 30, 2000. (17)

10.16*

Stock Pledge Agreement with Michael Lightbourne dated August 30, 2000. (18)

10.17

Loan and Security Agreement with Guaranty Business Credit Corporation dated
May 26, 2000. (19)

10.18

General Continuing Guarantee with Guaranty Business Credit Corporation
dated May 26, 2000. (20)

10.19*

Employment Agreement with Mark L. Thoenes dated January 1, 2001. (21)

10.20*

Employment Agreement with Timothy J. Erwin dated January 1, 2001. (22)

10.21*

Employment Agreement with Richard A. Nida dated August 14, 1998, with
Addendum dated June 8, 2000. (23)

10.22

Rights Agreement dated as of May 18, 1995, between Rentrak Corporation and
U.S. Stock Transfer Corporation. (24)

10.23*

Letter Agreement between Rentrak Corporation and Joon S. Moon entered into
as of March 15, 2001. (25)

10.24*

Incentive Stock Option Agreement with Paul A. Rosenbaum dated March 30,
2001. (26)

10.25*

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement with Paul A. Rosenbaum dated
March 30, 2001. (27)

10.26*

Employment Agreement with Amir Yazdani dated July 1, 2001. (28)

10.27*

Employment Agreement with Paul A. Rosenbaum dated October 1, 2001. (29)

10.28*

Consulting Agreement with George H. Kuper dated April 24, 2001.

10.29*

The 1997 Non-Officer Employee Stock Option Plan of Rentrak Corporation.
(30)

10.30*

Amendment to the 1997 Non-Officer Employee Stock Option Plan of Rentrak
Corporation. (31)

10.31

Second Amendment to the 1997 Non-Officer Employee Stock Option Plan of
Rentrak Corporation.

21

List of Subsidiaries of Registrant.
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23

Consent of KPMG LLP.

24

Power of Attorney of Certain Officers and Directors.

99

Description of Capital Stock of Rentrak Corporation. (32)

*Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement.
1.

Filed as Exhibit 2 to Form 8-K filed on April 17, 2001.

2.

Filed in Form S-3 Registration Statement, File No. 33-8511, filed on November 21,
1994.

3.

Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-Q filed on February 14, 2001.

4.

Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to 1993 Form 10-K filed on June 28, 1993 (File No. 0-15159).

5.

Filed as Exhibit 10.30 to 2000 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2000.

6.

Filed as Exhibit 2 to Form 8-K filed on December 9, 1996.

7.

Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed on November 3, 1997.

8.

Filed as Exhibit 10.23 to 2000 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2000.

9.

Filed as Exhibit 10.13 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

10.

Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q filed on November 3, 1997.

11.

Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q filed on November 3, 1997.

12.

Filed as Exhibit 10.24 to 2000 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2000.

13.

Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to Amendment No. 1 to 2001 Form 10-K filed
on August 14, 2001.

14.

Filed as Exhibit 10.15 to Amendment No. 1 to 2001 Form 10-K filed
on August 14, 2001.

15.

Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q filed on November 6, 1998.

16.

Filed as Exhibit 10.17 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

17.

Filed as Exhibit 10.18 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

18.

Filed as Exhibit 10.19 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

19.

Filed as Exhibit 10.27 to 2000 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2000.

20.

Filed as Exhibit 10.28 to 2000 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2000.

21.

Filed as Exhibit 10.25 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

22.

Filed as Exhibit 10.26 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

23.

Filed as Exhibit 10.27 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

24.

Filed as Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K filed on June 5, 1995.

25.

Filed as Exhibit 10.29 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

26.

Filed as Exhibit 10.30 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

27.

Filed as Exhibit 10.31 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

28.

Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed on November 13, 2001.

29.

Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed on February 14, 2002.

30.

Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8 filed on June 5, 1997.

31.

Files as Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8 filed on October 29, 1997.

32.

Filed as Exhibit 99 to 2001 Form 10-K filed on June 29, 2001.

